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Corporate Information and Key Dates
AEERKREERH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

28th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, Macau Branch

China Construction Bank Corporation

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement 29 September 2020

Annual General Meeting 3 December 2020

— Latest time to lodge transfers 27 November 2020
(before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form and on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order
to protect the environment, the Company highly recommends
the shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual
Report. Shareholders may have the right to change their choice
of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any
time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited, by post or by email at is-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Results
£

During the year ended 30 June 2020 (the “Year”), the total
revenue of Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
decreased by 13.4% to HK$126.2 million (2019: HK$145.8
million) despite the Group had increased 6 cinemas. This was
mainly due to controls on visits and suspension of services as a
result of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
since early 2020.

Amid the Pandemic, the Group has actively taken all necessary
measures to mitigate the adverse financial impact. The
Group strived for costs saving by continuously negotiating
with landlords for rental reduction and staff cost reduction
measures; and boosting sales by enhancing customer
engagement activities and launching promotional programs.

Nevertheless, the Group incurred a net loss for the Year
amounting to HK$353.2 million (2019: HK$134.3 million),
including a provision for impairment of its cinema assets
amounted to HK$92.0 million (2019: Nil). The significant
increase in the loss was mainly attributable to the provision for
impairment, the increase of operating expenses arising from
the opening of new cinemas, and a decline in film exhibition
revenue.

Basic loss per share was HK$0.11 (2019: HK$0.04).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

The Group principally engages in entertainment, media and
cultural development businesses, which include (i) cinema
operation; and (ii) investment in films and a variety of cultural
events.

MARKET REVIEW

The film exhibition market experienced unprecedented
challenges during the Year. During the period between July
and December 2019, the entertainment market as a whole was
broadly stable and market development was on track. However,
due to the Pandemic since early 2020, various control
measures affecting patrons were imposed globally. The cinema
operations in Hong Kong and Malaysia were suspended for
a period of time, while all the cinemas in mainland China
were closed since 25 January 2020 during the Year. People
generally refrained from visiting these venues because of public
health concerns, resulting in a drastic drop in the number
of audiences as well as box office revenue. Film production
and movie launches were also generally delayed. Hence, the
business environment of film production and exhibition related
sectors were seriously affected.

=]

AEBEEBREFRE  FEREBHRES
HRBFE)EREE: RINREEYREEX
L&D -

i 45 B B8

RAFEE  BEERMTHERE TR RE /K
B o R2019F7A 12 HIf - IRE T 5 RS
ABBE  MBRENER - A - ARAR
TE2020F FHEHE  2HREMTSEEHIHE
MMEETERE -NAEE  BEREKRA
THEREELE T RER  MABEAMLEY
BBt Bl 8202015258 #£ & @ - AR H
RERAHEFEMNZE  TEBEANTZES
T BHEBASREERAKRE TR - &K
PEREFEZ LRI ERAEE - At - S EME
MMABTENENREIIRELE -

Emperor Cinemas — Citywalk, Tsuen Wan

RERfT — BEZHFA M

Emperor Culture Group Limited

REXEXKEERAF 5
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 ¥




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T \."

BUSINESS REVIEW E 3 4CI]- ]
Film Exhibition ERRM

During the Year, revenue from the film exhibition segment was RAFE » B2 5 5 2 WA 5126,200,000
HK$126.2 million (2019: HK$143.0 million). Although there were 7T (20194 : 143,000,000/ 7T) ° & & R AF
6 newly operated cinemas during the Year, the revenue from [EEGREIFHEE  WREZDE 2R AR
this segment was severely affected by the Pandemic. RAMITHBRELE o

As at 30 June 2020, the Group ran 11 (2019: 5) cinemas in  ®2020F6A30H © A& B 4 H i& £11(2019
mainland China, Hong Kong and Malaysia under “Emperor F :5)EEif BERERFTEAM I EEE
Cinemas’, offering a total of 95 (2019: 54) houses with more & #| - BEE 2 H E & kI M EXR M 2
than 12,400 (2019: 6,200) seats, all of which are situated in TEmperor Cinemas] - & 12 #£95 (20194 :

strategic locations providing premium entertainment services.  54) ff] % B8 + #112,400 (20194F : 6,200) {& A
The details of the film exhibition network as at 30 June 2020 f& - %E‘lﬂﬁ RERBUENEWIREEE R
are as follows: LRTE o BT R A% R2020F6H30H

ZHEBEEHINNT

No. of No. of
houses seats

TEHE LFEHE

Mainland China FERt 2 HEE R4

1. Emperor Group Centre, Beijing 1. EREEEEF L 10 1,154

2. Shin Kong Place, Chongging 2. EEMHXKRIM 18 2,298

3. MixC, Hefei 3. /\HE%%WZ 13 1,980

4. East Pacific Shopping Mall, Shenzhen 4. FRINKRBEH KM 9 458

5. Shanshan Outlet Plaza, Ganzhou 5. BMELRERITES 9 1,500

6. Wenjiang Shin Kong Place, Chengdu 6. &%B/M/I%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%f@ 10 1,836

Hong Kong E%ZF%E@/’EJ

7. New Town Commercial Arcade, T P9 3 &R 7 55 4 385

Tuen Mun

8. MOSTown, Ma On Shan 8. BRILFBEA L 4 435
. iISQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui 9. L YWIHISQUARE 5 979

10. Citywalk, Tsuen Wan 10. 2 EZE A 5 669

Malaysia 55 %k #8522 [Emperor Cinemas |

11. R&F Mall Johor Bahru . HLUENES 8 743

Total @t 95 12,437

6 Emperor Culture Group Limited REXCEXEBEERQT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Film Exhibition (continued)

Located in either large-scale commercial and entertainment
complex or upscale residential areas, the cinemas of the
Group are positioned as high-end premium cinemas equipped
with advanced technologies including IMAX® theatre system,
ScreenX, 4DX or MX4D motion systems, D-Box seats and
Dolby Atmos audio system. They also feature VIP houses and
VIP lounges, where the audiences can enjoy premium and
exclusive entertainment services.

The “Emperor Cinemas” in iISQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong
Kong, which commenced operation in December 2019,
features VIP house “the CORONET", offering guests a 5-star
experience in an intimate setting, coupled with gourmet
delights prepared by master chefs. Each chair features a
service button, enabling service ambassadors to promptly
attend to guests during screenings. In addition, its IMAX®
House has the biggest IMAX® with Laser screen in Hong Kong,
together with a new-generation IMAX® with Laser projection
system, creating a remarkable visual experience for audiences.

Emperor Cinemas — MOSTown, Ma On Shan
ZREEFT — BB FTE A O

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T ‘."

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (K EOEEE)
Investment in Films and Cultural Events EEXRLEERE

During the Year, the segment did not generate any distribution RAFE Ik BI ERKEBHEEKELE 2
and licensing income from animation business as it was EFRETEEERZ REEAZEBKER
disposed of in June 2019. Hence, the segment revenue was 2019F68 H&E - B It KEEZ It H B 2 W
nil (2019: HK$2.8 million) for the Year. Nevertheless, the A & Z (20194 : 2 8OO 000 JT) °» A - A
Group recorded an increase in fair value of investments in fim S BRAFEHEESNE ?5%1@ &éﬁz B
productions of HK$0.4 million (2019: decrease in fair value of  {& & A1400,000/% 7T (20194 : A 7t & & &k 4

HK$8.0 million) during the Year. 8,000,000/ 7t) °
PROSPECTS Al &=

In the light of an unfavourable business environment in the ZERTHTFNLEIRE  AEBBEHLES
near term, the Group will implement more promotions, to drive HEE EZEBAEME R E W HEFE ZHEE - K
visitations and ticket sales. The Group will enhance customer SEEEIMAF AL REEERE  BATFPEH
loyalty engagements with extended use of social media & - AEEBBRFEREREE  KEERYEMS
channels. The Group will adhere to its prudent approach, %1t - %HMD BHENIES ERELEMa o
promptly react to market changes, and take appropriate AEEFEFT  —BHELERZE E&Bﬁ(% BERE
measures to improve its overall operating efficiency. The Group & FOH  MZERANLBEELXHENZ KK
expects that traffic will gradually pick up as soon as the health HEEZEF th& R T A K Lo o

quarantine measures are eased, and various world-class

and regional movies with renowned casts to be released

accordingly in the near future.

Emperor Cinemas — iSQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui
HE R — X WIHISQUARE

8 Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEXEEERAF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

PROSPECTS (continued)

Leveraging its long established “Emperor” brand label as
well as synergy with Emperor Entertainment Group artistes,
the Group will continue to roll out branding and marketing
campaigns, to enhance its brand exposure and maximise the
reach to target customer groups, in order to strengthen its
position in the industry and maintain stable business growth in
the long-term.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$40.6 million (2019: HK$166.5 million), which
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
Malaysian Ringgit.

To finance its operations and capital expenditure, the Group
utilises cash flow generated from operations and from loan
facilities granted by a related party and a bank. As at 30 June
2020, the Group had total borrowings of HK$191.9 million
(2019: HK$43.6 million), which comprise a loan from a related
party of HK$146.3 million (2019: Nil), bank loan of HK$2.0
million (2019: Nil) and amount due to non-controlling interests
of HK$43.6 million (2019: HK$43.6 million), respectively. Except
for the amount due to non-controlling interests, which is
unsecured, interest-free and was provided with an agreement
not to demand repayment within 12 months from the date
of the end of the Year, all these borrowings are unsecured,
interest-bearing and have fixed repayment terms. The gearing
ratio of the Group (expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings over net assets attributable to owners of the parent)
was 65.3% (2019: 7.0%) as of 30 June 2020. Such increase is
mainly due to the increase in total borrowings for expansion of
cinema operation as well as the decrease in net asset value
affected by the Pandemic.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Emperor Cinemas — iSQUARE, Tsim Sha Tsui
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
Malaysian Ringgit. As most of the Group’s assets, liabilities
and transactions were transacted at and denominated in the
functional currency of its foreign operations, the Group did
not expose to significant fluctuation in foreign exchange rates
during the Year.

OTHER INFORMATION

Mandatory Unconditional Cash Offer

Upon completion of acquisition of 585,980,000 issued shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) by Emperor Culture Group
Holdings Limited (the “Offeror”), the controlling shareholder
of the Company, from Win World Profits Limited, an associate
of and a party acting in concert with the Offeror and several
independent third parties on 12 November 2019, the Offeror
and parties acting in concert with it were interested in
approximately 51.35% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company.

Emperor Cinemas — Shanshan Outlet Plaza, Ganzhou
REBH — BN ERFEES

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 “F ¥
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Mandatory Unconditional Cash Offer

(continued)

Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Code on Takeovers and Mergers
(“Takeovers Code”) issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, the Offeror had made a mandatory
unconditional cash offer (the “Offer”) for all the Shares, other
than those already owned and/or agreed to be acquired by
the Offeror or parties acting in concert with it (the “Offer
Share(s)”). The offer price for each Offer Share was HK$0.08
in cash and the Offer was unconditional in all respects.

From the commencement of the offer period and up to the
closing date of the Offer (i.e. 10 January 2020) (“Closing
Date”), the Offeror had made on-market purchases of an
aggregate of 217,760,000 shares, representing approximately
6.78% of the total issued Shares. During the Offer period, there
were valid acceptances in respect of 503,373,094 Offer Shares
under the Offer, representing approximately 15.67% of the
Shares as at the Closing Date of the Offer. Taking into account
the valid acceptances in respect of the aforesaid Offer Shares
under the Offer, the Offeror and parties acting in concert with
it held an aggregate of 2,371,313,094 Shares, representing
approximately 73.80% of the Shares of the Company right after
the close of the Offer.

Details of the Offer were set out in the joint announcement
made by the Company and the Offeror dated 15 November
2019 and 10 January 2020, as well as in the composite
document issued by the Company dated 20 December 2019.

Emperor Cinemas — Wenjiang Shin Kong Place, Chengdu
HEBH — AR TH XM

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Possible Acquisition of Shares of SMI Culture &
Travel Group Holdings Limited (“SMI Culture”

or the “Target Company”)

On 24 February 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Potential Purchaser”) issued a letter of intent
to the receivers of SMI Culture (the “Receivers”) for the
potential acquisition of all or certain of 829,185,517 shares
(the “Received Shares”) of the Target Company (“Possible
Acquisition”), representing approximately 52.51% of its issued
share capital. Such letter of intent is non-legally binding in
nature. In the event such Possible Acquisition is concluded,
the Potential Purchaser may incur an obligation to conduct
the mandatory general cash and/or securities exchange offer
for all the issued shares and relevant securities of the Target
Company (other than those which may be acquired or agreed
to be acquired by the Potential Purchaser and parties acting in
concert with it), pursuant to the Takeovers Code. In the event
that no acquisition of the Received Shares from the Receivers
is concluded or a percentage of the Target Company’s shares
falling short of triggering a mandatory general offer is acquired,
the Potential Purchaser might nevertheless make a voluntary
offer for the shares and other securities of the Target Company
(the “Possible Voluntary Offer”) pursuant to the Takeovers
Code.

The Potential Purchaser is currently conducting a due diligence
review on the Received Shares and the Target Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Target Group”), and is in
the process of ascertaining the position with major creditors
of the Target Group and the possibility of restructuring the
debts or debt securities owed by the Target Group to them.
Given that there is difficulty in obtaining necessary financial
information and due diligence documents of the Target Group,
this imposed limitations to the discussion. Negotiations and
discussions between the Potential Purchaser and the Receivers
regarding the Possible Acquisition are still ongoing. Due to,
among other factors, the Pandemic, slow response time from
the management of the Target Group and extra time needed
to assess the position of the Received Shares, a longer period
of time for due diligence regarding the Received Shares and
the Target Group is required.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 ¥k
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Possible Acquisition of Shares of SMI Culture &
Travel Group Holdings Limited (“SMI Culture”
or the “Target Company”) (continued)

Details of the progress with the Possible Acquisition have been
made in the joint announcements of the Company and the
Potential Purchaser dated 26 February 2020, 25 March 2020,
24 April 2020, 25 May 2020, 26 June 2020, 24 July 2020, 25
August 2020 and 25 September 2020.

In the event that the Possible Acquisition is successful, either
through the mandatory cash and/or securities exchange offer or
the Possible Voluntary Offer, the Target Company will become
a subsidiary of the Company. The results and financial position
of the Target Group will then be consolidated to the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the Potential Purchaser
has not yet concluded this Possible Acquisition, and no formal
agreements has been entered into in respect of the Possible
Acquisition and the Possible Voluntary Offer.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s number of employees was
502 (2019: 333). Total staff costs including the remuneration
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during
the Year were HK$64.8 million (2019: HK$53.7 million).
Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme to provide incentive or rewards to staff.

Emperor Cinemas — R&F Mall Johor Bahru, Malaysia
HERT — BRAZIILEDES
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEBAEBZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (CHAIRPERSON)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Former Name: Fan Man
Seung), aged 57, an Executive Director of the Company and
Chairperson of the board of Directors (the “Board”). Ms. Fan
joined the Company in March 2017 and has been responsible
for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and
development as well as overseeing different functions within the
Group. She is also the Chairperson of the Executive Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor International”),
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296)
(“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited
(Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J") and Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts International”), all being
associated corporations of the Company. Having over 31 years
of corporate management experience, Ms. Fan possesses
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from
cinema development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, property investment and development, hotel
and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Chi Fai, aged 64, joined the Company in March
2017 as an Executive Director of the Company and has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing the financial
management of the Group. He is a member of the Executive
Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong
is also a director of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel,
Emperor W&J and Ulferts International. Having over 30
years of finance and management experience, Mr. Wong
has diversified experiences in different businesses ranging
from cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, manufacturing, property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial and
securities services, artiste management as well as media and
publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

14 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEEERALT
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEBAEBZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, aged 34, joined the
Company in March 2017 as an Executive Director of the
Company. He is also a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yeung has over 10 years of diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from cinema
development and operation to entertainment production and
investment, property investment and development, hotel
and hospitality, retailing of watch & jewellery, financial and
securities services, artiste management as well as media and
publication. Mr. Yeung is also an executive director of Emperor
International.

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes, aged 57, joined the Company in
March 2017 as an Executive Director of the Company. She is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company.
Ms. Hughes is currently engaged in the management of
entertainment businesses involving production and distribution
of music, TV programmes and motion pictures as well as event
performance and artiste management. She was previously the
Chief Executive Officer of New Media Group and has over 30
years’ of experience in media and publishing business. Prior
to that, she worked for Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting
Company Limited as Program Presenter and Producer as
well as for Hong Kong Cable Television Limited as Channel
Manager of Entertainment Channel and Controller for Program
Development and Production for more than 10 years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2014. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. She is a retired
solicitor and with over 20 years of experience as independent
non-executive director of various listed companies. Currently,
she is also an independent non-executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 997) and Emperor
W&J. Ms. Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with Bachelor's Degree in Laws.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEBAEBZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(continued)

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, aged 46, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2016.
Mr. Ho is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as
a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He has been practising as a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since 2009. He has
over 22 years of experience in accounting profession. Mr. Ho
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and is
a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong.

Ms. Tam Sau Ying, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2018.
She is also the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Tam is a co-founder and
partner of Messrs. Leung, Tam & Wong, Solicitors. She has
over 19 years of experience in the legal profession and is
also an accredited mediator and a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer. She graduated from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree and gained
her Master of Arts Degree from University of Essex, England.
Ms. Tam later studied law in The University of Hong Kong and
was admitted as a solicitor in 2001.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
principally engages in entertainment, media and cultural
development businesses, which include (i) cinema operation;
and (ii) investment in films and a variety of cultural events.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 66 and 67,
respectively, of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages
5 to 13 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 31 to 58 of this annual
report and note 40 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2019/2020 of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 172 of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$366,690,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 70 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2020, the Company has no reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (2019: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 8 November 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

18 Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers represented less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented 62% of the Group’s total purchases and
services received. The largest supplier accounted for 41% of
the Group’s total purchases and services received during the
Year.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had beneficial interests
in the share capital of any of the above major customers or
suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen

Ms. Tam Sau Ying

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16
of this annual report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(2) and 87(3) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms.
Vanessa Fan"), Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander (“Mr. Alex
Yeung”) and Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (2020 AGM”) and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the 2020 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company

Name of Director

Esns Bt #EME

Mr. Alex Yeung

Bk E AERZEERX®A

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Culture Group
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert
Yeung Entertainment Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment
Holdings”). AY Entertainment Holdings is held by Alto Trust
Limited in trust for a private discretionary trust of which Mr.
Alex Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

20 Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(B) Long position interests in associated

EERFETBRAEZESES

(&

(B) R EE 2 HFRER

corporation
() Ordinary shares i EHER
Number % of issued
of shares voting shares
Name of Name of Capacity/Nature interested HERT
Director associated corporation  of interests FERES BERERE
Exns HEEE SR L2Va £33 ZRGEE ROBESL
Ms. Vanessa Fan ~ Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29%
BT HEEK ERERA
Mr. Alex Yeung Emperor International Eligible beneficiary of 2,747,610,489 74.71%
mEE ®HEER a private discretionary trust (Note)
MARBEIZEERRHA (Ht7t)
Emperor E Hotel Eligible beneficiary of 851,352,845 68.98%
REREREE a private discretionary trust (Note)
MARBEIZEERRHA (Ht7t)
Emperor W&J Eligible beneficiary of 4,290,850,000 63.29%
REERKE a private discretionary trust (Note)
MARBEIZEEREHA (Ht7t)
Ulferts International Eligible beneficiary of 600,000,000 75.00%
B L B p% a private discretionary trust (Note)
MARBEIZEERRHA (Ht7t)

Note: These shares were ultimately owned by the respective
Mr.

private discretionary trusts.

Alex Yeung had

deemed interests in the same shares by being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of such private trusts.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(B) Long position interests in associated
corporation (continued)

ESREIBORARZESRIE

(B) RMEBEE 2 HFRER(E)

(ii) Debentures (i) fEREF
Name of Capacity/Nature Amount of
Name of Director associated corporation of interests debentures held
E=nR HEEE SR B REEMEE FREEREE

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Emperor International

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
November 2011. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. No
option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Options Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was
the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEEERALT
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EENBEREBoER

BUSINESS

As at 30 June 2020, the interests of the Directors or their 2020 6H30H  EEHFEZB 2B EA
respective associates in the business which are considered to RH R AERIE FMBABETHBEZAEER
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, &K EESMEERBEIHAEERZEFE
with the business of the Group (‘“Competing Business’) as & ((BBEK P HEA 2 EFZWT

required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Nature of Competing Business:

(1)  Cinema operation

(2) Investment in films and cultural events

Name of Director

Exns

Mr. Alex Yeung
s

Ms. Vanessa Fan
BRI

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Shirley Percy
Hughes
F A 22 £

REEK ML
(1) EifreiE

(2) BEEEXLEBHRE

Nature of
Name of Competing
competing company Nature of interests Business
BEATER EEME BMEXRBME
Certain companies controlled/  Director and/or an eligible (1) & (2)
owned by a private beneficiary of the private
discretionary trust of which discretionary trust
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert ZEE S ABBEFLZ
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”) is the BE®RZ = A
founder and settlor
(“Competing Companies”)
H—IELARNIBEE
(BEXEL(BEL)RZ
BEREZEIARTERTA)
26 B2 ETRAA
([HmFEQFD
-ditto- Director 1) & (2)
-[A k- =
-ditto- Director (1) & (2)
-[A - 5%
-ditto- Director (2)
-[A k- =
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2020, so far as is known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the persons or corporations (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had,
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Name

M MR

Capacity/Nature of interests

56 #EME

AY Entertainment Holdings

15X IR 2 IR R AR BAE 2 # 2

Alto Trust Limited
MABBEITZZTA

Dr. Albert Yeung

HiEL ABBERZEIZA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
(“Ms. Semon Luk”)
B2+ ([BEZL])

Interest of spouse

[

Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Alex Yeung had
deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above. Ms. Semon Luk is
the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in DI Register.

24 Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Interest in a controlled corporation

Trustee of a private discretionary trust

Founder of a private discretionary trust

REXLEXEEARAT

FERRREMALZES

R2020%6A30H » M EFTKARAER
TTRABMAM  BREFHARREZEITHRAR
SN TN A AL EOE B RA R R B 7 2k 48 B B A
TRAIWERAWEFREECHRNRBE
7N GG DI % 336K AT E 2 & it ([#
BERMDzEDEIORBWT

RERzEFR

Number % of issued
of Shares voting Shares
interested EE®T
EEEs ERER
ZBRHBEE [yl e
2,371,313,094 73.80%

(Note)

(Kt at)
2,371,313,094 73.80%

(Note)

(Kt at)
2,371,313,094 73.80%

(Note)

(Kt at)
2,371,313,094 73.80%

(Note)

(Kt at)
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B F AT # FEE YN 0 A2020F6H308 ' %
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN

TRANSACTIONS

, ARRANGEMENTS

OR CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company and certain

Directors had material interests, directly

or indirectly, in such transactions:

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —

Master Leas

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

ing Agreement (“MLA”)
24 May 2018

(M
(@)

The Company
Emperor International

MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)’) regarding
leasing of certain office properties
or other properties (including cinema
and advertising space) from Emperor
International and its subsidiaries for the
period from 24 May 2018 to 31 March
2021 with aggregate tenancy annual
caps being set for each of the financial
years ended/ending 30 June 2019, 2020
and for the 9 months ending 31 March
2021 (“Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps”).

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members
of the Group and the relevant members
of Emperor International may from time
to time enter into any definitive leasing
agreements in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each
Definitive Leasing Agreement shall be
on normal commercial terms or on terms
which are no less favorable to the Group
than terms offered by independent third
parties. The terms and rental shall be
subject to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition of the
properties and with reference to the then
prevailing market rents on property(ies)
comparable in location, area and
permitted use.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

EERRG  ZHASHNTERE
NENVNEERRBERS

RAREE  NEBEARRFEAL
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A) Continuing Connected Transaction —
Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

(continued)

Nature:
(continued)

Effective
Date:

Announcement:

Circular:

26 Emperor Culture Group Limited

As both the Company and Emperor
International were indirectly controlled
by the relevant discretionary trusts set
up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is deemed
substantial shareholder of the Company,
Emperor International was a connected
person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the
MLA constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Mr. Alex
Yeung, a Director, has deemed interest in
the transactions by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
discretionary trusts.

During the Year, the aggregate amounts
of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International or its relevant
members was HK$11,235,000.

9 August 2018, whereupon the
Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps had
replaced all the then annual caps
previously obtained by the Company for
the Tenancy Transactions.

24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

17 July 2018
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions —
Master Agreement on purchasing furniture
and obtaining furniture procurement
consultancy services (“Master Furniture
Agreement”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

Announcement:

15 January 2018
(1)  Albert Yeung Holdings Limited
(2) Ulferts International

Pursuant to the Master Furniture
Agreement, Ulferts International and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Ulferts Group”) shall (i) sell products
and provide furniture procurement
consultancy services to members of
Emperor Group (including the Group) in
relation to their projects and investments,
or for their own consumption; (i)
sell furniture coupons to members
of Emperor Group for their own
consumption and for the consumption
of their clients as a marketing strategy
of their projects; and (iii) provide such
other types of ancillary services and
any transaction of revenue nature in the
ordinary course of business of Ulferts
Group, commencing from 29 January
2018 and up to 31 March 2020.

As both the Company and Ulferts
International were indirectly controlled
by the relevant discretionary trusts set
up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is deemed
substantial shareholder of the Company,
Ulferts International was a connected
person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the
Master Furniture Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Mr. Alex Yeung, a Director,
has deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the relevant discretionary
trusts.

During the Year, the amounts of
HK$4,673,000 and HK$606,000 were
paid to Ulferts Group for the purchase
of furniture and the obtaining of furniture
procurement consultancy services
respectively.

16 March 2018

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions —
Master Agreement on purchasing furniture
and obtaining furniture procurement
consultancy services (“Master Furniture
Agreement”) (continued)

On 29 June 2020, the Company entered into a new
master agreement with Ulferts International in relation
to its continuous purchase of furniture products and
obtaining furniture procurement related consultancy
services for its cinema operation from Ulferts Group,
commencing from 1 July 2020 and up to 30 June 2023.

Please refer to the announcement dated 29 June 2020
for details.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements
Save as disclosed in note (ii) of the “Lease expenses” in
amount of HK$11,235,000, the “Purchases of furniture” in
amount of HK$4,673,000 and the “Consultancy fee” in amount
of HK$606,000 for the Year as shown in note 37 — “Related
Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements
which constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in the note thereon are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
relevant requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Group’s auditor were engaged to report on the Group’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”)
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s
Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

28 Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed the CCTs and
the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed that these transactions
have been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(3) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time
during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment
with the Shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the executive and non-executive Directors, internal equity of
employment conditions across the Group and applicability of
performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid
in line with market practice. No individual should determine his
or her own remuneration.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries,
Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the financial performance of the Group and
individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and
other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 31 to 58 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 256% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) held office as
auditor of the Group until the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2019 (“2019
AGM”). Ernst & Young was appointed to replace HLB as the
auditors of the Group at the conclusion of the 2019 AGM.

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2020 AGM. A resolution for their re-

appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
‘Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the Year, the Company has fully complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2020, the Board comprised seven Directors, four
of which are Executive Directors (including the Chairperson)
whilst three are INEDs. The Board considers that this
composition ensures a strong independent element with a
balance of power and influence between individual in the
Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out from pages
14 to 16 of this annual report under the “Biographies of the
Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Vanessa Fan has been appointed as the Chairperson of
the Board who provides leadership for the Board. With the
support of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”), she ensures that all Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information and are properly briefed on
issues arising at the board meetings. She is responsible for
ensuring that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities. The Executive Directors are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses. The
Board considers that current segregation of duties can ensure
a balance of power and authority and make the Board and the
operation of the Group function effectively.

The Chairperson holds meeting without the presence of
Executive Directors with INEDs at least once a year.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

All INEDs are professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas
who contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them
has been appointed for an initial term of three years which
is renewed automatically for successive terms of one year
subject to early termination with notice being served by either
party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent by reference to the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been
expressly identified as such in all corporate communications
of the Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprising all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has been delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all power and
authorities of the Board except the following matters as set out
in a “Formal schedule on matters reserved for and delegated
by the Board™

° determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

° approving annual and interim results and financial

reporting;

° declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

° approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

o approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules (except for
discloseable transactions in relation to lease transactions
recognising the right-of-use assets according to HKFRS
16 Leases);
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THE BOARD (continued)

Delegation to the Management (continued)

° approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders of the Company (as the case may be))
under the Listing Rules;

° approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;

° approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

° approving the establishment of Board committees;

° approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited
to risk management policy, remuneration policy and
corporate governance policy;

° approving financial assistance to Directors;

o ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

° approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest in the
Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is
a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in
order to assist them to perform their duties to the Company.
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Induction, Support and Professional
Development of Directors (continued)

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company.

Name of Directors EEnA

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BHEL L
Mr. Wong Chi Fai HEEBEA
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander B EE L&
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes #F A 22 £
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PR8I L+
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen Al ERE L L
Ms. Tam Sau Ying BRIt

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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EEg(#E

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EECHEBE R EEER A
The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the RAFEEEHESZ2BRLOT:
Year is set out below:
No. of meetings attended/held
HESHE ETE8RY
Corporate 2019 Annual
Governance General
Audit Remuneration Nomination Committee Executive Meeting
Name of Directors Board Committee  Committee  Committee =~ £ %ER  Committee  2019FE
Espg Exg ERZEE ¥MEEE REEZEg ZE® BTZEEE RRBEFAE
Executive Directors
HTES
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 1) 77 11 11 12/12 11
BRBELLT (W E)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 717 1/1 12/12 /1
BEEEEAE
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander 77 1212 11
BYELE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes 717 12/12 11
BRI e
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIYFHTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 6/7 3/3 11 11
BRI+
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (Note 2) 77 3/3 11 11 11
R T 7E2)
Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Notes 3) 77 3/3 11 11 11
BIER R L (f7#3)
Total number of meetings held: 7 3 1 1 1 12 1
BTEBRZAY:
Notes: oz
1. Chairperson of the Board, Executive Committee, Nomination 1. %’\ WITZEE  RAEZESRLEERE

Committee and Corporate Governance Committee

2. Chairman of the Audit Committee

3. Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee

SEE
2. BEREESER

3. HHZREXE

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time
in performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

RAFEE - REXERSTR 2T REXE
A7l EREFBIYIFATEFTET R
BWTEFTHRENEZ -

EXEECENBSETETEYARRNEMERMN
EZER  YRB/RAFESMNEFTHIENE
RHREEITREBRE -
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time with reasonable notice by
any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of
the Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Alex Yeung
and Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes. The primary duties of
the Executive Committee are (a) formulating business
policies and making decision (including entering into
transactions) on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group; (b) making
and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning,
investment and operation strategy of the Group; (c)
discussing and approving any financial, borrowing,
charging and guarantee commitment to be made or
on behalf of the Group; (d) approving any transactions,
including discloseable transactions, exempted connected
transactions and non-exempted continuing connected
transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing
Rules; (e) approving any publication of the relevant
announcement for discloseable transaction in relation
to lease transaction recognising the right-of-use assets
by the Company as a lessee according to HKFRS 16
Leases and (f) having all power and authorities of the
Board except those matters specifically reserved for the
full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by the
Board from time to time.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

2.

38

Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Chan Sim
Ling, Irene and Ms. Tam Sau Ying.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors; and (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting policies and
principles adopted by the Group, and the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 June
2019 (“Previous Year”) and the interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 31
December 2019;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group;

ii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group
during the Previous Year;

iv. recommended the Board on the appointment of
external auditors at the 2019 AGM; and

V. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed the
independence of external auditor and approved its
engagement.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

3.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Tam Sau Ying (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong
Chi Fai, being the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on (a) the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management; (b) the remuneration of INEDs;
and (c) the specific remuneration packages for individual
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation
to the Board; and

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their
specific packages.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (sef up on 23 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee),
being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ho Tat Kuen and
Ms. Tam Sau Ying, both being INEDs.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing
the Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy
for the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”)
and identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the
time commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or
re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:
reviewed the structure, size,
diversity of the Board;

composition and

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;
and

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2019 AGM.
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Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (sef up on 23 March 2012)
(continued)

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will also assess the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-
election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy
of the Group which aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board Diversity
Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and the
nomination procedures for (i) nominating new Director
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (i) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
for election or re-election at general meeting; and (iii)
nomination by Shareholders on election of new Director.
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5.

42

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14 August
2015)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists
of four members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson
of the Committee), being the Chairperson of the
Board, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, being an INED, a
representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC
is available on the Company’s website. The primary
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company (“CG
Policy”) and making recommendations to the Board; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of
the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The CGC held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board:;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii.  reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

V. reviewed on Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved
by the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board
for ensuring good information flow within the Board and the
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on general duties and obligations of
Directors and good corporate governance issues, and has
facilitated induction and professional development of the
Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly complied
with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and made judgment and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements were prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before it for approval. The
auditors of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor's Report.
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TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company

in achieving its business objectives.

Internal control policies

and procedures within the Group are updated regularly with
the primary objective of providing general guidance and
recommendations on a basic framework of risk management
and internal control systems (“Control Systems”).

A.

44

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Control Systems. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
losses.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
- safeguarding assets

- ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports

- promoting adherence to policies,
regulations and laws

procedures,

- promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (i) risk management functions in its principal
subsidiaries of the Company.
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TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control
Governance Control

The control structure of the Control Systems is set
out as follows:

M

The Board

responsible for the overall Control Systems;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing
basis with the assistance of Audit Committee;

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines
of responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of risk that
the Group is willing to take in achieving the
business objectives and formulate the Group’s
risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Control Systems. This discussion
includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions;

review the nature and extent of risks, and the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment;

review and discuss annually with any
significant control failings or weaknesses that
are identified; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditors and
make recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued) B.

BEEEERAIBEEE)
AR 2 & (A7)

(1) Governance Control (continued) (1) ETREZEE)

The management (including heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

o design, implement and maintain the Control °
Systems properly and ensure the Control
Systems are functioning effectively;

° monitor any control failure incidents or risks of °
failure and take measures to mitigate a soon
as possible;

o give prompt responses to, and follow up the °

findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

o provide confirmation to the Board on the °
effectiveness of the Control Systems.
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Internal Audit Department A &8 & % BB PT
e carry out the analysis and independent e HETZRAMABEZEREE

appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness of
the Control Systems in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and

compliance aspects;

° alert the management on the audit review °
findings or irregularities and advise them on
the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the

Group; and

° report results of internal audit reviews and °
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee
and the Board on regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

@

(i)

(iii)

Systems and Procedures on Protection
and Disclosure of Inside Information to
ensure, with the assistance of internal work
team (if required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any one or
more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate,
for the attention of the Board. The Board
shall make timely decisions on disclosure, if
necessary, and take appropriate measures to
preserve confidentiality of inside information
until proper dissemination of the inside
information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which
shall be reviewed and monitored regularly
by the Corporate Governance Committee as
delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations and the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters; and
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)

48

@

©)

Compliance Control (continued)

v)

Anti-money Laundering and Counterterrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework
for combating against money laundering and
financing of terrorism. It provides guideline to
prevent the Group’'s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors from
misused for money laundering, terrorist financing
or other financial crime and has set out some
indications of potentially suspicious transactions/
activities for employees’ reference.

Operational Control
The management is responsible for analysing the

control

environment, identifies risks pertaining

thereto, and implements various controls therein as
follows:

()

Emperor Culture Group Limited #HE
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Approach taken: The management conducts
interview with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Control Systems
and evaluates findings of any deficiencies
in the design of the Group’s internal control
system, then provides recommendations for
improvement and assesses the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings
of the review on the Control Systems will
be reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually;

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition
and ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records that are in compliance with
the applicable laws, rules and regulations for
the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication;
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
Operational Control (continueq)

©)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Management information system and
technology: To control over the business
activities, it allows close tracking of various
inputs and outputs of the Group’s business
such as inventory, products and customer
relationship and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system,
under which permissions and responsibility
of authorisation are clearly identified and
adequate records can be maintained in the
Control Systems;

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on
regular basis;

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of
any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
acts as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities;

Safeguarding of assets: Regular physical
count of inventories, daily cash, movie
vouchers and exchange coupons for each
cinema with reconciliation of report generated
from the ticketing system are performed
by Finance and Accounts Department and
reviewed by Internal Audit Department; and

Service quality control: Regular review
on operational systems of cinema business
segment to ensure the service quality.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control (continued)
Financial Control

50

@

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

proper controls are in place for the recording
of complete, accurate and timely accounting
and management information;

annual budget of cinema operation is prepared
and approved by the management before
being adopted;

monthly financial statements are provided to all
directors and senior management which give
a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance, financial position
and prospects in sufficient details;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly financial
results of cinema operation against the
budget;

regular reports on revenue, debtors’ ageing
and internal financial reports are prepared to
the management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

daily available fund report and monthly cash
flow forecast are reviewed to monitor the cash
flows of the Group;

the Group policy and guideline on cheque
payment to individual is strengthened; and

annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations.

Review of Internal Control

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal Audit
Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans should be reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board on timely basis.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management

M

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board
and the management based on (i) the severity of
the impact of the risks on the Group’s financial and
operation; and (i) the probability and frequency that
the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation,
manage the risk as follows:

the Company will

° Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of
the risk to an acceptable level or contingency
plan for possible loss scenarios.

° Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Accidents and other situations involving
loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

° Risk retention — The management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough that
the risk is acceptable level and no action
is required and the risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not
increase to an unacceptable level.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
Significant Risks and Control Measures

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessments.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective risk levels and key control measures are
set out below:

52

@

Occurrence of disaster events:

‘Act of God”, fire, natural disasters (e.g. severe
typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19, SARS,
Ebola or Avian Flu happening could have adversely
effect on the Group’s business and reputation.

Ensure all safety measures as required by the
governments in different jurisdictions such as
mainland China, Hong Kong and Malaysia are
fully implemented.

Keep update on development of disaster
events and follow the instructions and
guidance given by the local governments
and the Stock Exchange as well as other
professional bodies such as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries so as mitigate the impact of the
events to the Group.

Fire-proof material is used for cinema’s
renovation, exit lighting signboards, escape
route and fire extinguishers are put in a proper
place in the Group’s cinemas.

Develop an emergency plan, organise proper
insurance and give regular training to our staff
in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to
deal with occurrence of these events.

Implement necessary cost control measures to
ensure sustainability of business.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)

@

Significant Risks and Control Measures
(continued)

Competition in China theatrical market:

There is intense competition in China theatrical
market due to continuous opening of movie theaters
in mainland China as well as internet broadcasting
platform becoming more popular, especially with
5G. No assurance that demand in the film screening
will increase in line with or outpace the supply of
new cinemas.

o Dedicate to provide a premium theatrical
entertainment service and environment for the
audiences by equipping the Group’s cinemas
with the advanced visual and audio technology
to sustain its competitiveness.

° Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different social
media platforms from time to time in order to
attract more audiences.

° Provide different sources of on-line or off-line
ticketing services.

° Before commencement of a new site, market
analysis and projections are prepared by
Business Development Team of the Company
and assessed by Operation Team and the
management.

° Diversify film exhibition business in different
markets like mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Malaysia.

Competition in entertainment business:

Film exhibition business is highly competitive
as it is subject to the availability and popularity
of alternative form of entertainment. There is
no assurance that the Group will sustain its
competitiveness successfully in the entertainment
industry.

o Regularly review and adjust the business
strategic plans to cope with the competition.

° Diversify the Group’s entertainment business
and expand its film exhibition business in due
course.
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TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

C.

54

Risk Management (continued)

(2) Significant Risks and Control Measures
(continued)

Inherent risk on entertainment business:

Entertainment business including cinema operation
and investment in film industry is inherently risky.
There is no assurance of the economic success of
any motion picture since the revenues generated
from these businesses depend primarily on each
film’s public acceptance and its popularity, which
cannot be predicted with certainty.

o Stay alert to the changes in market trend,
audience’s needs and preferences.

o Keep cautious in selection of films, stories and
scripts.

° Co-produce, co-invest or co-partner with

business associates to diversify the risk.

Cinema location and rental expenses

Cinema rental expense is always a key cost
component of the Group. A significant fluctuation of
cinema rents may affect the Group’s profitability.

° Rental negotiation with landlord by senior
management to ensure the rental costs are
within budget.

° Explore cinema locations with good potential
at reasonable level.

o Perform profit forecast to assess its financial
viability.

The Company has used its best endeavours to manage
the above risks and continue to keep the focus on any
new emerging risks that are likely to exist in the days to
come.

Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness of
the Control Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
and the Board had reviewed the Control Systems and
were not aware of any significant issues that would have
an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of
the Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas
of the Control Systems.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates
with the Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the
holding of annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meetings, if any, which may be convened for specific
purposes which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the publication
of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or
circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases
providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability
of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website
at https://www.empculture.com; and (iv) investors/analysts
briefings and/or media conference (when necessary).

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the
2019 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and notices of all other general
meetings will be sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business
days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2019 AGM and the chairman/members
of the Board Committees and the external auditors were
available at the 2019 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairperson of the meetings had explained the procedures
for conducting a poll during the meetings.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The
Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim
and final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attribution to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of the factors stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the applicable laws of Bermuda and
the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a
written requisition requiring a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)
to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must state
the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in
order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to Convene/Call General Meeting
(continued)

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than two months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them may convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionist”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition
signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less
than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that AGM is called for a date six weeks
or less after the copy has been deposited, such requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries
can be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

RERZER(E)
Bl BERRKEZERE

MNERZ ZEKAMEAIAAR  EERIELZ
ELHERRENERXBRBRKARRTES
MEAZARARTZRRENAE @ AIEX
BRAL(RETHERE2RBARER—F
AEZERADTEBEARBRRENAS -
HEE MR UL AR 2 BERBFRIA GG A ER Lt
iR XX 2SR B HRE A 3E A m 1R 81T o o
BERXREBRALMARZAGEZENLEES
SEARKREMRRAZTAAERA -

RRBREAELEEREER
BIEBREIGIFRRE  HFAETLRART]
BEHERA(EERERGIRERS HREZE
M+ Hnz2—6GrZ2ELBRRETHAZIR
BADETLRI00BEBELRREREAINER
FRABMARBER@RABEZRT—ERE
BERg@ECRRELBN  NEMEMFT
ERZASLEERABZ I HNE LB ZZR
FR RbOMAEESRXIARREASEBEY
f% R E RN B1,000F 2Rt £ - LAE MR
ZACLREZAZRAMAEEXNBEEY
FIH o BRALHAERBERALTEREE T &E
BEAEBMAARMBEBERT 26 ERER(H
BEHRABRBAZERN) RGBT LRA
B2k (HAEREMER) KReRITHA D
R—EERRERARRAREBZETENER °
EREERBAZNEEHIBREHERNZ
X—BEAREAFTFRKS  AIRERk#REE
RERHEANER it m s MWK BEZA
BEXR e

REALSRES
BEREALTSBES IR FANSAR MU
aH -

RREH

BRRABARBZEBERNDBFPEL Y REE
ERRARAAEARFIZHEBR - BRRZ
HibERARARBIREHEBRIFIEL -

HEXCEXEBERAT 57
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 ¥k



Corporate Governance Report

TEERBRE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in
constitutional documents during the Year.

the Company’s

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young is independent and had recommended
the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the
2020 AGM. During the Year, Ernst & Young has rendered audit
services and certain non-audit services to the Group and the
remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as
follows:

Service rendered 22z R
Statutory audit VBB %
Non-audit services FEEZR
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EY:

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 171, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
staterments section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter How

BAEEXER
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our audit addressed the key audit matter

RRERER FIHNBERNAEEHERESRSEE

Impalrment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

ME- BERRBURERAREE ZRENG

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had property, We evaluated management’s impairment assessment
plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of- of PP&E and ROU Assets. The key procedures
use assets (“ROU Assets”) with carrying we performed on evaluating the methodology,
amounts of approximately HK$524,524,000 and assumptions and estimates used in the impairment
HK$1,064,327,000, respectively. During the year assessment included, inter alia, the followmg

ended 30 June 2020, the Group recognised ATHETEEBYYE - I R R AEE

impairments of PP&E and ROU Assets of FZM@%H RITR 14 5%
Ko A 51 B BRER BV BA S 25 A%

approximately HK$38,040,000 and HK$53,987,000, R
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respectively. &I :
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The Group assesses whether there are any indicators

of impairment for PP&E and ROU Assets at the end

of each reporting period and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amounts of the respective
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs

to which the respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate
and whether the respective recoverable amounts of the
CGUs or groups of CGUs are less than their respective e
carrymg amounts.

EEENSBERRERNFERETROEM

il

we assessed the key assumptions and estimates
used in management’s discounted cash flow
projections, including, inter alia, budgeted/
forecasted revenue and results of operations,
growth rates and discount rates, taking into
consideration the historical accuracy of the prior
year’s assumptions and estimates made by
management as appropriate;
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we obtained an understanding of the current and
expected future developments of the respective
CGUs or groups of CGUs and factors that might
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BB PR

ME- BERRBURERAREE ZREE(E)

As at 30 June 2020, the recoverable amounts of
the respective CGUs have been determined by
management based on value in use calculations using
cash flow projections specific to the respective CGUs
and applying respective discount rates which reflect
risks relating to the respective CGUs.

20206 H30H » RIS EL BN A WO S5 HH
Aﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%iiFiium%mfﬁmgﬁ%
AERRBRERGELEMEBR R ZAEBERNERE
BtEEE -

The impairment testing of PP&E and ROU Assets
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of PP&E and ROU Assets and related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. Uncertainties
about certain of these assumptions and estimates are
particularly significant due to the current uncertain
economic outlook and market demand. The outcome
of impairment assessment could vary significantly if
different assumptions and estimates were applied.
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We focus on this matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant accounting
judgements and estimates required in determining the
recoverable amounts.
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The related disclosures about significant accounting
judgements and estimates and information about
impairment of PP&E and ROU Assets are included
in notes 3, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

we involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the methodology used and
certain key assumptions and estimates made by

management, including, inter alia, the specific
discount rates and growth rates applicable
to the respective CGUs or groups of CGUs,
with reference to market and other relevant
information;
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we evaluated management’s assessment about
reasonable possible changes in certain key
assumptions and estimates and
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we assessed the adequacy of related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Yat Fai, Peter.

%gﬁm?ﬁ%&%ﬁ%&ﬁ%iﬁiz,ﬁﬁ

ATRBEEVZEGRE BMEAHKE
MHBRERBEZIFENRERZR AERE
ZER - BRIPERIEAR T BT ARBELL
FERS(EBREENBERAT)ANTR BB EL
SERIAEBAHNITRERBBEB AR
BUFEEMEEM TEERSH TURE
BARTTEERBMREPHEAMSFTEIE -

HARNBY ZBMBENEZHBEBARRK
SPE

Ernst & Young LK B ET AT FE AT
Certified Public Accountants BEFEHE
22/F, CITIC Tower BEAEPRIR
1 Tim Mei Avenue N E B
Central, Hong Kong F{ERE221E
29 September 2020 2020 9H29H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEEmK

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

REVENUE LON 5 126,245 145,753
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (50,342) (67,113)
Gross profit E A 75,903 78,640
Other income and gains Hfbug A R Uz 6 CRETS 8,244
Selling, distribution and other cinema 5% - o &k E M E R

operating expenses EEHRX (229,942) (109,583)
General and administrative expenses —MEITHRAX (64,234) (54,867)
Other expenses, net HiHAZ FE (92,329) (54,682)
Finance costs B 16 B AR 8 (49,786) (2,037)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB A0 5 18 7 (354,202) (134,285
Income tax credit PRSI % 11 976 -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EERFA (353,226) (134,285)
Attributable to: AL :

Owners of the parent ISH/NCIE PPN (342,181) (126,437)

Non-controlling interests FE1E IR HE 2 (11,045) (7,848)

(353,226) (134,285)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BRABEBAEM

TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT BRER
Basic and diluted EARRE#E 12 LGOS E | HK$(0.04) 7 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
metmElEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEEFA (353,226) (134,285)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS H2HEEE
Other comprehensive income/(loss) RE 7 Hj[&] 7] & #F
that may be reclassified to profit SHEEEmZ
or loss in subsequent periods: At 2EH W a
(E1E) -
Exchange differences: P& 5 E R
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #E /BN EHE 2
foreign operations fEH =% (8,732) (8,829)
Reclassification adjustments for FEBEEEBFIN
foreign operations disposed of EBzENDE
during the year 5 34 305
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FEKHZHM 2@
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Ea (8,732) (8,524)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FE 2 HE B # %
THE YEAR (361,958) (142,809)
Attributable to: AL
Owners of the parent YNSIE DN (350,303) (133,870)
Non-controlling interests FE 1R IR = (11,655) (8,939)
(361,958) (142,809)
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX/LEZEBEERLF 67
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BT AR R R

30 June 2020 20204 6A30H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E Y & 13 524,524 262,699
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 1,064,327 -
Prepayments, deposits and AN BE RHEAM

other receivables & W 3k 23 36,338 56,002
Total non-current assets kRBEEHAE 1,625,189 318,701
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 21 2,110 641
Trade receivables 2SR 22 2,532 4,761
Prepayments, deposits and other AN BE RHEAM

receivables & W 3k 23 38,758 38,922
Financial assets at fair value through EARBEFABRZ

profit or loss SREE 19 7,130 170,783
Cash and cash equivalents HBekBeEEY 24 40,625 166,465
Total current assets RBEEHE 91,155 381,572
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and BN KAt

accruals RN EER 25 48,939 40,776
Contract liabilities EHaE 26 15,218 11,128
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERITREMEER

borrowings 27 2,000 -
Lease liabilities HEARE 14 50,457 -
Amounts due to related companies P& Bl & R R R IE 37(b) 3,709 5,651
Amount due to non-controlling interests  J& 1 3F 4% Hﬂ%fmmlﬁ 37(c) - 43,589
Total current liabilities nBEEARE 120,323 101,144
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ RBEE(AF)

(LIABILITIES) FE (29,168) 280,428
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAE

LIABILITIES 1,596,021 599,129
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Provisions B 28 44,816 -
Interest-bearing bank and other ERRITREMER

borrowings 27 146,313 -
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 1,103,756 -
Amount due to non-controlling interests JEfT FEE IR AE X IE  37(c) 43,589 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAE 1,338,474 -
Net assets EEFE 257,547 599,129
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

30 June 2020 20204 6H30H

EQUITY &=
Equity attributable to owners of the B AFEAAEGRES
parent
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 32,133 32,133
Reserves 1 32 261,540 591,385
293,673 623,518
Non-controlling interests FERER (36,126) (24,389)
Total equity AR 257,547 599,129
Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Wong Chi Fai
ERE BEEE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEE
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX/LEZEBEERLF 69
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

At 1 July 2018 #2018 7A1R 32,133 912,843 50 58,658 186 (246,482) 757,388 (11,566) 745,822
Loss for the year FEEFAR - - - - - (126,437) (126,437)  (7,848) (134,285)
Other comprehensive FEEMZE
loss for the year: BB
Exchange EBRENEBZ
differences EHER
related to foreign
operations - - - - (7,433) - (7483) (1,091)  (8,524)

Total comprehensive FEXABBLER

loss for the year - - - - (7,433) (126,437) (133,870) (8,939) (142,809)
Disposal of subsidiaries &M B LA 34 - - - - - - - (3,884)  (3,884)
At 30 June 2019 #2019F6A30H 32133  912,843* 50* 58,658" (7,247 (872,919)* 623,518 (24,389) 599,129
At 30 June 2019 #2019F6A30H 912,843 (372,919) 623,518 (24,389) 599,129
Effect of adoption of RmERHBES

HKFRS 16 HEBIE16% 2

2 4 2.2 20,458 20,458 (82) 20,376
At 1 July 2019 R2019F7A1R

(restated) (7)) 912,843 (352,461) 643,976  (24,471) 619,505
Loss for the year FEEE = (342,181) (342,181)  (11,045) (353,226)
Other comprehensive FEAMZE

loss for the year: EE:

Exchange BERENEBZ

differences EXERE

related to foreign

operations (8,122) - (8,122) (610) (8,732)
Total comprehensive FEXABELER

loss for the year (8122)  (342,181) (350,303)  (11,655) (361,958)
At 30 June 2020 #R2020F6A30H 912,843* 58,658* (15,369)* (694,642)* 293,673 (36,126) 257,547

- These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBEROEREAVBMRAR 2GS HE
HK$261,540,000 (2019: HK$591,385,000) in the consolidated 261,540,000 7T (20194F : 591,385,000/ 7T ) ©

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 N =] iﬁ%l)lbi%

Year ended 30 June 2020 & £2020%6A308 |FFE

(354,202)

49,786
(1,361)

1,172

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKETHZ2RE
ACTIVITIES RE
Loss before tax: B 75 AT S 48 -
Adjustments for: FHEIEE -
Finance costs B 75 7R 8
Interest income B A 6
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, BE MY E
plant and equipment s RE BB 7
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZHKE 6
Gain on derecognition of a contingent 4% |- & 32 JiE Uk sk &
consideration receivable REZ W= 6
Changes in fair value of financial BRANBEFAER
assets at fair value through profit or Zﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁz
loss NAEEEH 7
Depreciation of property, plant and %% MRLEREZ
equipment e 7
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEZINE 7
Amortisation of film and television B RERE HRE
programme rights & ¥ 7
Amortisation of intangible assets BmEEECHEH 7
Impairment of goodwill &7 R E 7
Impairment of trade receivables B SRR ZBE 7
Impairment of property, plant and Y - WEREHEZ
equipment BAE 7
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAEEEZRE 7
Write-off of film and television RIEPZE
programme production in progress TR E B 2 W 7
Decrease/(increase) in inventories B (g )
Increase in film and television BERZER
programme production in progress BAREN B E N
Decrease/(increase) in trade BorRE R,
receivables (3% 0)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FBftF ~ & &
other receivables H b & U K3 N
Decrease in contingent consideration & I sk 28 (X (B &

receivable
Decrease in financial assets at fair value

BRARBEAAERZZ

(134,285)

2,037
(2,710)

(3,476)

(654)

22,918
29,519
8,111
1,942

28,273
381

3,110

(64,770)
(1,491)

163,351

9,237
4,488

through profit or loss THMEERD
Increase in trade payables, other BN - B
payables and accruals FERTRR K BT & ARG AN
Increase in contract liabilities R EEEM
Net cash flows from/(used in) RE (AR RETE
operating activities ZEREREFE

(44,834)
253

(5,608)

(7,304)

(21,043)
7,864
8,503

22,283
6,613

112,529

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—_ 9 =
It \éiﬁﬁ;}liii
Year ended 30 June 2020 & £2020%6A308 IFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZTEZ

ACTIVITIES HEeRE
Interest received LS P 2,710
Purchase of items of property, plant and B E W% - # 22 &

equipment HIER (346,051) (106,145)
Additions of intangible assets BIVEERNE = (4,524)
Disposal of subsidiaries k=)= NC] 34 — 47,871
Net cash flows used in investing ARREESHZ

activities REeREFRE (345,805) (60,088)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RERMETEZ

ACTIVITIES RERE
Advances from related companies ERER/NE I 2,020 9,163
Advances from non-controlling interests  3F 12 f% # 2§ = v 3% = 672
New bank loan MERITER 27 2,000 -
Other loan raised FrEEEMmER 144,000 12,000
Repayments to related companies BEMBEQRNRE = (18,563)
Repayments to non-controlling interests & i JF 4% A% 4 25 7K 1A -~ (1,953)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRAEEH (12,335) -
Interest portion of lease payments BENZKAEE D (25,686) -
Interest paid =ENRAES) (18) (2,037)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RE(AR)BEZE

financing activities ZREREREE 109,981 (718)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BR&RERELZEY

EQUIVALENTS W (123,295) (94,079)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FzHe kRS

beginning of the year ZEY 166,465 264,142
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [& R & &)~ 52 &

net P (2,545) (3,598)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRXzHERESE

THE END OF THE YEAR £EY 40,625 166,465
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH REeEREASEEY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEDIMN
Cash and bank balances Be MiRTET 40,625 166,465
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS HRER MR

Year ended 30 June 2020 #; Z£2020F6830H It F &

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March 1992 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
its principal place of business is located at 28th Floor,
Emperor Group Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
also engaged in investments in securities. During the year,
the Group was primarily involved in the following principal
activities:

° cinema operation
° investments in films and a variety of cultural events

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor
Culture Holdings”), which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI").

In the opinion of the directors, Albert Yeung Entertainment
Holdings Limited (“AY Entertainment Holdings”), which
was incorporated in the BVI, is the ultimate holding
company of the Company. AY Entertainment Holdings
is wholly-owned by Alto Trust Limited, being the trustee
of Albert Yeung Entertainment Discretionary Trust, a
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”), a deemed substantial shareholder
of the Company.

PAREEER
BEXEXEEEFRAR(AXAA] A
— R0 3A2TH E R R ERER R
E1981F QA E (BER]) sx Ak 3L 2 &
HEBRAT o

KRR EBTABERSMAER QA
((BERAT)) BT o ARa] FE i =&AL
7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * H F Z &3
HMEABEABEFHEFEBIREES
= 0281 o

ARPR/—HREZERAR - I FER
ERHFRE - NAFEAKEETERSE
ATNEEXRS:

. BERE
¢ BABYREELED

ARRZ BEERRAR RN KB R LB
E(RBELXHEBDEMARINREX
TEXSEZERARAR(REX{LE
Bl o

HRESFER REBEXBESTMAL
ZHXRREERBERAF((HEZRR
RERDRBARAZREBERRAR - 15
X RIR 1R AR R Alto Trust LimitedE &
Albert Yeung Entertainment Discretionary
TrustZ XFEAZEHER - ZHI5EFEA
ARRIEB/EIERR2BEXKIE L (5
L& -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 &, £2020F6H30H It F[Z
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

1.

74

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Emperor Cinema Group Limited
EEEYHEEFRAA

Emperor Cinema Management Limited
EEEYHERARAR

Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited
RESYH(PE)ERAA

Emperor Cinemas (Macau) Limited

HEEYMORM)ERAA

Emperor Cinemas (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (note (iv))
REBYH(FRAT)ERDA (N # ()

Goldcore Holdings Limited

Multi-Wide Limited
BRARRA

Sino Spirit International Limited
(“Sino Spirit")

Emperor Cinemas (Anhui) Company Limited
(notes (i) and (i)

-]
= 7

FH(ZR) BRI M0 R(i)

BVI
RRRZES

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Macau

P

Malaysia
BRAEDR

BVI
RERARE

Hong Kong

BVI
RBRAHE

The People’s Republic
of China (“PRC")/
Mainland China

REAREA
(rhEl)/
HERY

Us$1
I

HK$1
BT

HK$2
2B T

MOP25,000
25,0002 F1 T

MYR100,000

RAREEER(E)

FRNEBARZER

ARAREFEMBRARIZFHBHT

100%

100,0005RETLE

US$1
EIH

HK$1
BT

US$100
100% 7T

RMB32,800,000
A K #32,800,0007T

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{CEEEEERAT
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Investment holding
REER

Cinema operation
Bk=E

Investment holding
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Cinema operation
k=i

Cinema operation

Investment holding

Film and event
investments and
investments in
securities
BYRKEER
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Cinema operation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS HRER MR

Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

RAREEER (EF)
FRMBARZER(E)

Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited PRC/Mainland RMB95,000,000 - 100% Cinema operation
(notes (i) and (iii)) China (Note (i) Bl &g
E2EFW L R)BRAR M) L (i) hE/RER AR #95,000,0007C
(i (i)
Emperor Cinemas (Chongging) Company PRC/Mainland RMB33,000,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (notes (i) and (i) China A E#33,000,0007T B
EERTWM(ER)ERAR M 0) R i) RE R E R
Emperor Cinemas (Chengdu) Company Limited ~ PRC/Mainland RMB23,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
(notes (i) and (i) China A R #23,500,0007C BheE
REBYW(KE)BRAR (H70) R (i) RE L RE R
Emperor Cinemas (Shenyang) Company PRC/Mainland RMB15,500,000 - 100% Cinema operation
Limited (notes (i) and (i) China A K #15,500,0007T B g
REBYHRMOER) BB DR (M A0) R (i) RE /R E R
Notes: Kt -
(i) These are limited liability companies established in the PRC. (i) EERPBBERINERAA -
(i)~ The amount represents the registered capital of Emperor (iy ZeBEREEEZWECR)ARQA(E
Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited including its branches BRETZHEER)ERARRIERS
of Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Shenzhen RNAE - REFZHUER)BRAFRN D
Futian Branch) (RE2EZH QL R)BRAFRIIEBHS A AEIRBEEBEH QLR ERAFTEIMNS

A)ZHEMER -

all

Dy

Al), Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Shenzhen 7
Branch) (REBE MWL) BAR AR EI H A7) and

Emperor Cinemas (Beijing) Company Limited (Ganzhou

Branch) (2T & (AL ) AR ARIENM D R F]).

R % S P B R 2 B 88 3 S M AE
EREXER  ARREZZEXAREIHR
WEZPXEHEEBEMR

(i)~ The English names of these entities registered in the PRC (iii)
are directly translated from their Chinese names as they do
not register any official English names.
(iv)  The Chinese name is for identification purpose only. (iv), SFXHBBERZR -
EERRB EXRAIZARQEMNE QA
DEEREFTEBRIBREAEEEE
FEHEAFODZHBERR  HAREAEH
LERREERRR -EFR R RBH
HMMB AR 2 EEERRERBNIT
E o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group, or are significant investment
holding companies of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ERER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.1

76

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets which have been measured
at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) since
early 2020 has disrupted the business operations and
developments of the Group. The Group has closely
monitored the development of COVID-19 outbreak and
the extent of the impact depends on the duration of the
pandemic and the implementation of relevant policies
and protective measures by respective governments. The
Group has paid close attention to any significant changes
of situation and has evaluated their impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial position, financial performance and
cash flows, as well as financial resources available to the
Group in the short to medium term.

The Group had a net loss attributable to owners of
the parent of HK$342,181,000 (2019: HK$126,437,000)
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and net current
liabilities of HK$29,168,000 (2019: net current assets
of HK$280,428,000) and net assets of HK$257,547,000
(2019: HK$599,129,000) as at 30 June 2020. The Group’s
net loss for the year included certain non-cash expenses/
charges in an aggregate amount of HK$240,705,000.
The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
HK$40,625,000 as at 30 June 2020 and had positive net
cash flows from operating activities of HK$112,529,000
for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS HRER MR

Year ended 30 June 2020 #; Z£2020F6830H It F &

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 REEE(E)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the
Group and the ability of the Group to attain growth
and cash positive operations in the near future. Active
measurements to save costs, to enhance the Group’s
existing operations and to focus on improving the
financial resources of the Group have been implemented/
contemplated by the Group to control its operating
expenses and cash outflows in the current and coming
years and to enable the Group to revitalise itself to take
advantage of any growth opportunities in the near future
(the “Improvement Measures”).

In addition, the Group has obtained a long-term
loan facility from a related party in amount of
HK$1,200,000,000 (the “Other Loan Facility”), of which
an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$144,000,000
was utilised as at 30 June 2020. The Group has also
obtained a revolving loan facility from a bank in amount
of HK$20,000,000 (the “Bank Loan Facility”), of which
an aggregate loan principal amount of HK$2,000,000
was utilised as at 30 June 2020. Further details of
such facilities are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company have evaluated relevant
conditions and events that are known or could be
reasonably forecasted/estimated. Based on such
evaluation, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, in light of the measures/arrangements
contemplated/implemented to date, including, inter alia,
the Improvement Measures, and the availability of the
Other Loan Facility and the Bank Loan Facility, the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements for the
foreseeable future and, accordingly, it is appropriate for
the Group to continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing these consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ERER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.1

78

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the vyear
ended 30 June 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R EE
Year ended 30 June 2020 # Z2020F6A30H It FE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2 REEE(E)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements.

2.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ERER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19
and HKAS 28 and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to or do not
have significant impact on the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, the nature and the
impact of HKFRS 16 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, are described
below:

80

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases -
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 July 2019. Under this method, the
standard has been applied retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses (or other component of
equity, as appropriate) as at 1 July 2019, and the
comparative information for 2019 was not restated
and continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ISR R EE
Year ended 30 June 2020 # Z2020F6A30H It FE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The Group elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing the
standard to be applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 July 2019.

As a lessee - Leases previously
classified as operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various leased
office properties and cinema properties used in
its operations. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the
rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the
Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of
low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease
basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class
of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, commencing from 1
July 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and
interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities
(as finance costs).

22 B RRBRBEZRE(F)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) (continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously

classified as operating leases
(continued)
Impact on transition

82

Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the
lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position immediately before 1 July 2019. The Group
elected to present the right-of-use assets separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

remaining

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 as at 1 July
2019:

Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease

Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
when measuring the lease liabilities as at 1
July 2019

Relying on the Group’s assessment of whether
leases were onerous by applying HKAS
37 immediately before 1 July 2019 as an
alternative to performing an impairment review

Excluding initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application

Emperor Culture Group Limited #EX{LEXEBEHERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS HRER MR

Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BT BERBEZEE ()
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued) () (#&) B
Financial impact at 1 July 2019 R2019F7A1R 2 M & &
The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 M20194F 7 A1 BR i %;\]?f’”%*&%
as at 1 July 2019 was as follows: R B16FEAEEZZENT

Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets 55 FA#E & EE 1L N 636,626
Decrease in prepayments, deposits  TE{T 3R~ & & & Hith /8 U 5Kk

and other receivables Vo (8,055)
Increase in total assets B EREEN 628,571
Liabilities afE
Decrease in trade payables, other BN - Hih AR K

payables and accruals FEET & RR A (17,417)
Decrease in amounts due to related &1~ B i& A 7] ZIE L 4

companies (3,962)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities FEREFREEFEE M 1,003
Increase in lease liabilities HEBFEMN 628,571
Increase in total liabilities BEBEEEM 608,195
Decrease in accumulated losses ZirBEER D (20,458)
Change in non-controlling interests FETE AR e 2w B 82

(20,376)
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX/LEZEBEERLF 83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 ST BERBEZEE (Z)
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued) (@ (&) s
Financial impact at 1 July 2019 R2019F7TAIR 2 B &
(continued) (& ‘
The lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 reconciled MR2019F7A1H 2 & B 7 & E/\\
to the operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019F630H 2 i & EAIE Y
2019 are as follows: BRAnT

Operating lease commitments at 20196 A30H v & & H &
30 June 2019 HPE 1,876,307
Less: Commitments relating to leases B FA20194F 7 A 18 4 5 1A 62
not yet commenced at 1 July 2019 MEBE 2R IE (1,151,551)
Add: Lease payments for optional extension A : EA2019¢6H 30H KRR
periods not recognised at 30 June AEEBEH 2 HAENRK
2019 147,760
872,516
Weighted average incremental borrowing R2019F7A1B 2 METFHEE
rate at 1 July 2019 fa B M= 5%
Lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 R2019FE7AIBZHEARG 628,571

(b) HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for (by BAE(BHBRFBEmRERELZES) -
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax TEE 235 et 1r‘ﬁRIEFEEE/*/F&$&;
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the EREEGFERFE12W 2T
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as MEEERzZAITRERBMRR])
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation HEAEH (B RIER) st RiE
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the Tk R BTEAREEgE
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include B ZE125% g IS A SN2 B TR S B -
requirements relating to interest and penalties LENRTBEEENETEN AR IEE
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The FAONBERESIHBERTE - 228
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether BEREENEBRSERTHEN
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments THEITE BRI (ii)E S B S
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes M IEREREFTENREER (i)
about the examination of tax treatments by B B8 Q0] 75 T FE AR B m A 3 A 1R B
taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines B BE- - RKBABBER K&
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused AHRERREETE: R(iv)ELE WA
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and EREFELBERACES - XEER
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and KMz i2EREEREREEEM
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation, TEEMBMRA - ERAEEHET
the Group considered whether it has any uncertain - ZRETESAEEN BN
tax positions. Based on the Group’s assessment, ME KRB EXERTE -

the interpretation did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEZEEERLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

Year ended 30 June 2020 #; Z£2020F6830H It F &

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Reference to the Conceptual
Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, /nterest Rate Benchmark Reform'
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 — Related Rent Concessions?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use*

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract*
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41*
Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

6 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ERER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

2.3

86

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about certain revised HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted. The Group has not early adopted
the amendment for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the
amendment is currently not expected by management to
have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 July 2020. The
amendments are currently not expected by management
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2ICHEMEBERER 2ERBYE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making a detailed
assessment of the impact of the other new and revised
HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in a position
to state whether those new and revised HKFRSs would
have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (group
of CGUs) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group
of CGUs) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in film productions
and listed equity securities at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group; and the
sponsoring employers of the post-employment
benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 10%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33¥5%

equipment
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and

the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Production rights

Production rights acquired in a business combination are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their respective contract terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

94

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTTHEBMEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019) HE(B2019F781REEH)

(continued) (&

Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREBEAE)

(b) Lease liabilities () HEERE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the HEBERHEMKBRREER
commencement date of the lease at the present N ELEMBEENR B ERER -
value of lease payments to be made over the HENMRBETHENR(BEEEE
lease term. The lease payments include fixed AR B EREEEEEWRIE -
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) BUR PR B s N R ey A B E FRIE
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease NRFEHRBERABEBEERINH
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and HE MHENKTEEAEESGIE
amounts expected to be paid under residual value BETENBEEEENTTEER
guarantees. The lease payments also include the TARIEAENS S HEEFE K
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably RERAREEITEEZRLZULERSE) -
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments WIFBURRIER S A ENA EHE
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease REFRAE 38 38 BN 30 1 Sk 14
term reflects the Group exercising the option to Fres £ M AmER AR -

terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, RAEHENFNRER WEE
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at FEBRENRNETSEE  AIAE
the lease commencement date because the interest EREEREAMFERAEEEER
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. o pNHIKAHRE HEARSSE
After the commencement date, the amount of lease B3GR BT A B 89 G & KR A
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of ERF e A - MR —IEEET
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. HEREY  HENRES (B :
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities MmN RS S| B ARKREE
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change NREENEERNBEEERIZR
in the lease term, a change in lease payments W &g AEFTEHEAE
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting ZHRHEE -

from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019)
(continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases (applicable before 1 July 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost
and fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBHERAF
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at FVPL, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at FVPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
depends on their classification as follows:

assets

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at FVPL are also recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBHERAF
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
FVPL. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the FVPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at FVPL.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at
FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group generally considers a financial asset in
default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables and measures the lifetime ECLs on a specific
basis according to management's assessment of the
recoverability of an individual receivable. Management
considers the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding, historical experience and
forward-looking information to determine the recoverability
of the trade receivable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised costs

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETBRBEE)

104

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within 3 months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in profit or loss.

A provision for reinstatement costs is recognised when
a contractual obligation under the terms of a lease
arrangement has arisen to reinstate a leased property at
the end of the lease. Reinstatement costs are provided at
the value of the expected costs to settle the obligation at
the end of the reporting period using estimated cash flows
and an equivalent asset is recognised and depreciated
over the term of the lease arrangement. The estimated
future costs of reinstatement are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Revenue from box office takings is recognised when
the relevant film is exhibited to the customer;

(b) Revenue from the sale of concession goods is
recognised at the point in time when the customer
takes possession of the food and beverage
offerings;

(c) Revenue from the sale of other products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products;

(d) Revenue from screen advertising is recognised
when the performance obligation is satisfied
generally on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant agreement; and

(e) Revenue from licensing of distribution rights over
films and television programmes is recognised when
the master materials of the films and television
programmes are delivered to the customer and the
amount can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to
the Group when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETBRBEE)

110

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the relevant local
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss when employees have
rendered the service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T EETTBRBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss with the exception of monetary
items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEETBRBEE)

112

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than HK$. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into HK$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew
the leases. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of
the lease term for leases of its cinemas due to the
significance of these cinemas to its operations and
the significant leasehold improvements undertaken (or
expected to be undertaken) over the term of the relevant
lease contracts that are expected to have significant
economic benefit for the Group when the option to extend
those leases becomes exercisable.
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114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets at the end of each reporting
period and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs or group of CGUs to
which the respective property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets relate and whether the respective
recoverable amounts of the CGUs or groups of CGUs
are less than their respective carrying amounts. For the
current year, the recoverable amounts of the respective
CGUs or group of CGUs have been determined by
management based on value in use calculations using
cash flow projections specific to the respective CGUs
based on key assumptions such as budgeted/forecasted
revenue, results of operations and growth rates and
applying respective discount rates which reflect risks
relating to the respective CGUs. The carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets at 30 June 2020 were HK$524,524,000 (2019:
HK$262,699,000) and HK$1,064,327,000 (2019: Nil),
respectively. Further details are given in notes 13 and 14
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 30 June 2020 #; Z£2020F6830H It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits

The impairment provisions for trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits are based on assumptions
about ECLs. The Group uses judgements in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in these assumptions and estimates could materially affect
the results of the assessment and it may be necessary
to make an additional impairment charge to profit or loss.
Further details of (i) trade receivables and (ii) deposits
and other receivables are given in notes 22 and 23 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments at
FVPL

When the fair values of financial instruments at FVPL
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair values are measured using
valuation techniques, including, inter alia, the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from relevant observable markets/sources where
possible, but where this is not feasible, certain degrees
of judgements and estimates are required in establishing
fair values. The valuation requires management to make
certain judgements, estimates and assumptions about
model inputs, including, inter alia, projected cash flows,
discount rate and other factors. Changes in assumptions
and estimates relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. Further
details are given in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

3. EXEFHERMAF(E)

BT RERE(E)
BEZEWR HttEWRREZEEZREE
ZoREKFG  HibhEBURERZEE ZRE
ﬁéﬁ)}%ﬁéﬁ%@%ﬁ%ﬁfmiﬂ@ﬂaZfﬁxao
AEBNESRERRBBEBETEN - B80T
Hﬁ;ﬁ&%ﬁﬂ&ﬂkﬂﬁiﬁ&%ﬁﬂ B
ZERBRELEIRETE 2B A S -
ZERE &1m+2“§ﬂaagﬁma
RENBEAFE VARKFEEREEF
{Eﬂjﬁﬁﬁ\vmﬁézﬁ *ﬁ‘ﬁ%()fﬁ%ﬁu&m
ki kEMBEBRRZE—FTFHBD
R E R AR B R R M fE22% 23 o

FEHAEEZ%E&IQ’AJ‘BE

=113 k)
1] Fb

®
=]
EWmWW#ﬂﬁ%$£ﬁZEQﬁA
@+Aﬁm2iﬂIEZ@ﬁFﬁT
REBERBTS ZHRENER  HARNE
BEERGEERM(EEEFEE) BRA
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@Dﬁ%O%%ﬁﬂZﬁkﬁﬁ
BRREKBMEBEZIERETS AR
Wﬁ%ﬁﬂ'w*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁh
EH—ERE 2 H I M5t - AEEX
EEEMRLBAZRE(BR(EFEE)
BRARERE  MRXNHEMEAR)ED
HETHE - BEkER - BZFRER
BRI MGEAZEGARETESR T
HAZBERREBE FHE-THEH
KR A B TS MR 7E39 o

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEZXEBEERL T 15

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 ¥k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

3.

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group generally estimates the IBR using observable
inputs when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates, as appropriate.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services, and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Cinema operation

(b) Investments in films and cultural events (including
investments in film and event projects; and
production, distribution, licensing of animated
television episodes and theatrical films which were
disposed of during the year ended 30 June 2019)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 i
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Year ended 30 June 2020 #; Z£2020F6830H It F &

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before
tax except that bank interest income, unallocated gains,
non-lease-related finance costs as well as unallocated
corporate and other expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents,
investments in listed equity securities included in financial
assets at FVPL and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RESBERE)
(continued)

Year ended 30 June 2020/At 30 June 2020 #H £202056H308 I £ & 7202056
A308

Segment revenue (note 5) 2 EWA (KT i25)
Sales to external customers HINEFIHE 126,245 126,245
Segment results DEEE (348,036) (347,734)
Reconciliation: AR -
Bank interest income |ATH B WA 246
Fair value loss on financial assets at L AREEFAEZZ
FVPL CRMEEZANEBEESE (694)
Unallocated corporate and other R 1% R EA X
expenses (3,689)
Finance costs (other than interest on B # &k A
lease liabilities) (HEaBEMEBRIN (2,331)
Loss before tax & %4 A1 &5 18 (354,202)
Segment assets PREE 1,668,304 1,674,526
Reconciliation: #HEE -
Corporate and other unallocated assets 1% & Efth K8 H & E 41,818
Total assets BEE 1,716,344
Segment liabilities PEERE 1,309,537 1,309,587
Reconciliation: HAR
Corporate and other unallocated TtEREMRESBE
liabilities 149,210
Total liabilities BAEE 1,458,797
Other segment information HttpEEHR
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERIHBZINE
equipment 57,311 57,311
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHEEEZINE 90,195 90,195
Impairment of property, plant and Y WEREBHZRE
equipment 38,040 38,040
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRHEEEZRE 53,987 53,987
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, H& "MW « BER
plant and equipment HE B 1,172 1,172
Fair value gain on financial assets at ZAREEFAEZZ
FVPL PREEZAABEKE = 392
Capital expenditure* BEART H~ 1,015,905 1,015,905
. Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * EARAZHBENEME  HBENBEAR
and equipment and right-of-use assets. EREEE -
118 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERA T
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & £2020F6H30H It F[Z
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Year ended 30 June 2019/At 30 June 2019

REsBER(E)

H 20196 A308 IF F & 7201946
A30H

Segment revenue (note 5) 2EWA (K i15)
Sales to external customers HINEPHE 142,971 2,782 145,753
Segment results DHEER (67,947) (49,566) (117,513)
Reconciliation: AR -
Bank interest income AT R B A 2,710
Gain on derecognition of a contingent AR IF R FEW S RRE 2

consideration receivable g = 654
Fair value loss on financial assets at R A RBEFAEZRZ

FVPL TREEZANBERERE (14,936)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR Z WS 3,476
Unallocated corporate and other RE %R E A

expenses (6,639)
Finance costs B 75 PR AR (2,037)
Loss before tax B 750 A1 &5 18 (134,285)
Segment assets PHEEE 361,711 166,000 527,711
Reconciliation: k-
Corporate and other unallocated TEREMRESEE

assets 172,562
Total assets mEE 700,273
Segment liabilities PEERE 99,472 48 99,520
Reconciliation: Ep
Corporate and other unallocated tEREMRESAE

liabilities 1,624
Total liabilities FEN=Ki= 101,144
Other segment information HitpsEEH
Amortisation of film and television BYREBRE B RE

programme rights - 8,111 8,111
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEZBE - 1,942 1,942
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERRBINE

equipment 29,438 81 29,519
Impairment of goodwill AmEZRE - 28,273 28,273
Impairment of trade receivables Z 5 EWR 2 A 381 - 381
Write-off of film and television BEh B RERGTEZ

programme production in progress 58 - 3,110 3,110
Fair value loss on financial assets at AR EEFAEZZ

FVPL PRMEEZANBEER - 7,982 7,982
Capital expenditure* BEART 63,324 34 63,358

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BREIWER(E)
(continued)
Geographical information 35 & R
(@) Revenue from external customers (@ #HIEFZWA

Mainland China H A
Hong Kong e
Other regions in Asia Pacific

DAHAM MR

65,891 114,692
56,361 31,061
3,993 -
126,245 145,753

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

Lt ANERTYAR PR i R &

(b) FRBEE

Mainland China R A
Hong Kong e

Macau B P

Other regions in Asia Pacific I8 R H i =

593,651 189,322
745,440 91,133
267,512 -
18,586 38,246
1,625,189 318,701

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers
The Group did not have revenues from any single

customer accounting for 10% or more of the total revenue
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).

LR EEERNTIABEERE
o B o

FEEFFEH

H 220206 A30H L FE - AEEW &
REFME-—FFP 2B AL EREBRIK
A10% 3 LA £ (20194 « £&) -

REVENUE PN
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AEEBZBRADHTHAT:
Revenue from contracts with REEFEHZWA
customers
Income from cinema operation REB LB 2 WA 126,245 142,971
Income from film and television REEFREREE
programme production and others SUELA I HoAth Z g A - 2,782
126,245 145,753
120 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERA T
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA(#Z
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHZWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@ WAERMAS
Year ended 30 June 2020 B £202056H30H L FE

Type of goods or services EmR%E B

Box office takings ZRIA 100,851 100,851
Sale of concession goods FaEmmiEs 11,859 11,859
Screen advertising services REESR®S 7,348 7,348
Others Eh 6,187 6,187
Total revenue from contracts RKERFAEHZ
with customers WA B3 126,245 126,245
Geographical markets i & 5
Mainland China R A 65,891 65,891
Hong Kong a5 56,361 56,361
Other regions in Asia Pacific 28 K E i [& 3,993 3,993
126,245 126,245
Year ended 30 June 2019 H E=2019F6H30B ILF &

Type of goods or services EmER%E B

Box office takings EEKA 114,297 - 114,297
Sale of concession goods HrEmiEs 12,376 - 12,376
Screen advertising services FHEESRSE 11,645 - 11,645
Licensing of distribution rights 217 2 % - 2,782 2,782
Others HAh 4,653 - 4,653
Total revenue from contracts KEEPEHZ
with customers WA 4B 142,971 2,782 145,753
Geographical markets i & T 5
Mainland China AR A 114,692 - 114,692
Hong Kong BB 28,279 2,782 31,061
142,971 2,782 145,753
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEZEEERAT 121
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e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA(E
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZBA(E)
(continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (@ WAERMD(E)
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRETRBRERININAEGHEE
recognised in the current reporting period that was WRAREAANER WA ESF

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:

Short-term advances received REEFEFZEHAKRR:
from customers:

Cinema operation Bl bt 2 & 9,768
(b) Performance obligations (b) BHEME
Information about the Group’s performance BEREAEEEAHSENER B M
obligations is summarised below: T
Box office takings EEIWA
The performance obligation is satisfied when the fim BHETREFPBEESY R =
is exhibited to the customer and payment in advance MER—REEFBLNH -

is normally required.

Sale of concession goods fE s gy e
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point BHBETREPEEN S LKAR
in time when the customer takes possession of the 18 7 B BEE A o

goods and payment is received.

Screen advertising services BFEEERHE

The performance obligation is generally satisfied EAEEARZHANEEEREERE
over time when the customer simultaneously EEMME  BAHEET—RREF
receives and consumes the benefits as the Group [E RS BN S FE A 25 R BE RS RS IE AR
makes the cinema available for screening of B—MEEEESYNEFFHE
advertisements over the term of the agreement, ¥ 4 B OR H FE < 45 881,984,000 7T
while certain payments in advance are normally (20194 1,047,000 o) & 5t A &
required, with the balance payable at the end HEENRN o

of the reporting period of HK$1,984,000 (2019:
HK$1,047,000) included in contract liabilities.

Licensing of distribution rights BITHEEZIZH
The performance obligation is generally satisfied EBHET—MAREEE
when the relevant master materials of films BB XX EEFERK
and television programmes are delivered to the
customer.

122 Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEZEEERLT
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & £2020F6H30H It F[Z
6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

HAit A R WK &
Hip A Rias 2 ST

Interest income from: FEWA:

— Bank interest income - RITHA BB A 2,710

— Deposits paid -BfNEke -
Government subsidies* BAS #8 AL 735
Gain on disposal of HEKB AR Z W

subsidiaries 34 3,476
Gain on derecognition of a & |- EREW K ARE

contingent consideration 2 W=

receivable 20 654
Others HAty 669

8,244
. The government subsidies mainly represented subsidies . B EZRE THEBE AR S WE R E

received by certain subsidiaries from local government
authorities in the PRC mainly as incentive to support the
Group’s relevant business development and subsidies
approved by the Finance Committee of the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
Cinema Subsidy Scheme and Food License Holders Subsidy
Scheme to cope with the operating pressure caused by the
COVID-19 outbreak. There were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these government grants.

BEMBAEEBORAHE(ERBEAXRE
AEEBBEBEROZE) UREB
FRTTHRRBRFLEEMBEESHH
ML BT B BY At B KSR R R B A B At
gl EF 2019 IR 5w 1% &5 B g
BE - MECONEXTRTMEM2
RERMGH R RAEIE -
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

7. BREAIEER
K2 BB R I T AR E
CYy

Cost of inventories sold* BEEFE KA
Depreciation of property, plant and EI *ﬁ%a%& %12
equipment** E
Depreciation of right-of-use assets** ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁEZTﬁ%**
Amortisation of film and television BYNERODEMREZ
programme rights* s
Amortisation of intangible assets” mEEEZHEH
Auditor’'s remuneration ZE R &
Minimum lease payments under KEHEIRT
operating leases** 2 15 B o 2
Contingent rents under operating KEHEETHA
leases** e
Lease payments not included in the REFAHEBEHN=
measurement of lease liabilities** Z &R R
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERMNMAX(HRES
directors’ remuneration (note 9))** B & LA SN (BF3£9)) ** -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and I8 %o Ak
allowances 2 B
Pension scheme contributions RIKSE BT
Fair value loss on financial assets at BEAREBEFABRZ
FVPL, net* TRMEEZAREE
&8
— Mandatorily designated as such - 58 &) A L8 TE
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE M E - s
plant and equipment LEBEEZER
Impairment of trade receivables* B RW R 2 BE"
Impairment of goodwill* E 2z A
Impairment of property, plant and M WBERERE R
equipment* B*
Impairment of right-of-use assets* ERAEEEZME"
Write-off of film and television BEh B NEBRER
programme production in progress* Z HEE
Foreign exchange losses, net HNEE BT 18 F ’E
# Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of #
profit or loss.
* Included in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated *
statement of profit or loss.
" Included in “General and administrative expenses” in the "

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*k

*k

124

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of
HK$56,975,000 (2019: HK$29,190,000); depreciation of
right-of-use assets of HK$86,625,000 (2019: Nil); lease
payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
of HK$313,000 (2019: minimum lease payments and
contingent rents under operating leases of HK$34,636,000)
and employee benefit expenses of HK$28,930,000 (2019:
HK$18,585,000) are included in “Selling, distribution and
other cinema operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERA T
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & £2020F6H30H It F[Z
FINANCE COSTS 8. BEIFEH A

8.

Interest on bank and other borrowings R 17 & EhE & &8 2,037
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE -
2,037
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BEBXES EMAN(ERRA]) -
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the B AECRAMEHI)E383(1)@) ~ (b) * (c) &
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), HER(EBRRI(BBEESHEER R
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance PIYE2HBER FREZTM2 T :

and Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

Fees ik 1,661
Other emoluments: H B2 -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - TEA KOERL -
Pension scheme contributions RIKSE B R -
1,661
(a) Independent non-executive directors @ BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive AEEINTFTRIIIENTES
directors during the year were as follows: W
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BRI &+ 220
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen IR E 220
Ms. Tam Sau Ying BRI+ 139
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue mEFxEE — 82
660 661
There were no other emoluments payable to the RAFE  BEEMNEMEINT
independent non-executive directors during the year B EMITEE 2B £ (20194 -
(2019: Nil). ) o
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX/LEZEBEERLF 125
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Year ended 30 June 2020 &, £2020F6H30H It F[Z
9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EEME(Z

(b) Executive directors b) HITES
The fees paid to executive directors during the year AEEINTHTEE2HREAT

were as follows:

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BEE L 250
Mr. Wong Chi Fai HEEELEA 250
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, 15 BBE % A&
Alexander 250
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes = L Hr 22 & 250
1,000
There was no arrangement under which a director RAFE BEEERBEMNLH
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during MESREREEMME -
the year.
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEBEHEE
The five highest paid employees during the year did RAFE A& EELTBIEEM
not include any directors (2019: Nil). Details of the EE(2019F &) - BEHAFARRESTZ
remuneration for the year of the five highest paid A4 ReEHFEEZCFEHFMFRBOT
employees who are not a director of the Company are as
follows:

Salaries and other short-term employee & M E R HEE

benefits il 3,022
Pension scheme contributions RIKSET MK 147
3,169
The number of non-director highest paid employees TR T EERNZIEZERTES
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as ANEAT:
follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 71,000,000 7T | 5] 5

During the year, no emolument was paid or payable by RAFE AEEBYERAIFEZTI HES
the Group to the non-director highest paid employees as FREREINHEMNTMEE - 1ERRS
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MAREB IR MARER % 2 2R
compensation for the loss of office (2019: Nil). B B BS E (20194F - 4 ) o
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE
11. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year (2019: Nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and
the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda and the BVI.

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax, Macau
Complementary Tax and Malaysia Corporate Income Tax
have been made in the consolidated financial statements
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in
Mainland China, Macau and Malaysia for the current and
prior years.

1. FiEH

AEBEMEREENGSRAIREBE - 1
THARASERAFERBEREEEL
EfA] 8 SR B0t A (20194 : &) -

REBRERRBRELZEENHER
f AEBEAREMNAEBRIESE
BERMERMRER -

AEERERPECEMAESH  RFA
GHABRLBERATZEEMBERNES
MR ANIELEE LI ARAEHE
RAFERBEFERERFE A -
MPANBRA T EEERMBRTGEN -

Current — Hong Kong BNHR — &/ &

Charge for the year REEREZ = -
Deferred (note 29) B RE (f15729) (976) -
Income tax credit FrigfiE & (976) -

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Company’s principal place of business is located and
certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax credit at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BARBDIBEEHWENETHE QR
FREREE®ER X ERXFEERRN
BUAER R AR ERAREER
MEFEZHBRRHERAOT

Loss before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

Different tax rates enacted by overseas
authorities

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised

Tax losses utilised from previous
periods

Temporary differences not recognised

Tax credit at the Group’s effective tax
rate

B %5 AT S 48 (354,202) (134,285)
BEBETEHE16.5%

8 2 118 (20194 -

16.5%) (58,443) (22,157)
EINBUT HIE 2R

= (10,463) (4,675)
BEZH 2 WA (583) (2,411)
AR 2 X 20,752 18,299
AERZMIBEBE 38,495 10,995
BTEREA B IE

B 18 = (51)
KERZEBEME=5 9,266 -
EASBERBERFE

ZBRBRR (976) -
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e ERRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

12.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

Basic

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the year ended 30 June 2020
attributable to owners of the parent of HK$342,181,000
(2019: HK$126,437,000), and the weighted average
number of the ordinary shares of the Company of
approximately 3,213,341,000 (2019: 3,213,341,000) in
issue during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

Diluted

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share

12. BARFERTAEEEBRER

2K
EREAEESEIRESATEEA
H E=2020F6A30H It FE 2 E1h B B
342,181,000 7T (20194F : 126,437,000/
70) K B 220204 K 2019F 6 A30H I F
BEZ2ARRRBETEAEBRMEFHED
3,213,341,000% (20194F : 3,213,341,000
RETE -

#8
R E E2020F K 20196 A30R ILFE

amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2020
and 2019 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during those periods.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEBEYEABEBRETEZORITE
B R EABRAZEHEME2 R

13. % - BERRE

30 June 2020 20206 A30H
At 30 June 2019 and at 720196 A308 &

1 July 2019: 2019 7A18 :

Cost KR 51,882 155,674 12,866 101,216 321,638

Accumulated depreciation REtHE = (25,504) (6,983) (26,452) (58,939)

Net carrying amount R FE 51,882 130,170 5,883 74,764 262,699
At 1 July 2019, net of M2019F7R18 -

accumulated depreciation k2T E 51,882 130,170 5,883 74,764 262,699
Additions NE 329,969 23,584 2,546 10,591 366,690
Transfers (823 (243,747) 174,486 37,500 31,761 -
Disposals/write-off HE 8 (1,140) - - (32) (1,172)
Depreciation provided during € 37 & & 5

the year - (31,363) (10,544) (15,404) (57,311)
Impairment during the year FERE = (28,838) (3,273) (5,929) (38,040)
Exchange realignment B 5, 3 2 (1,998) (3,475) (194) (2,675) (8,342)
At 30 June 2020, net of 202046 H308 -

accumulated depreciation MBRRFTHER

and impairment B 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
At 30 June 2020: 202056 A300 :

Cost KA 134,966 348,990 52,418 139,842 676,216

Accumulated depreciation BEERFAE

and impairment - (84,426) (20,500) (46,766)  (151,692)
Net carrying amount EEFEE 134,966 264,564 31,918 93,076 524,524
128 Emperor Culture Group Limited REN{LEZEEERAQT
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Year ended 30 June 2020 #; £2020F6A30H It FE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M3 - MBREHEE
(continued)

30 June 2019 201946 A30H
At 1 July 2018 R2018F7A1R -

Cost AR 4,396 154,297 13,153 95,902 267,748

Accumulated depreciation 2EHME - (12,213) (4,433) (14,200) (30,846)

Net carrying amount RHEFE 4,396 142,084 8,720 81,702 236,902
At 1 July 2018, net of R20184%7A1R

accumulated depreciation k2T E 4,396 142,084 8,720 81,702 236,902
Additions NE 47,577 6,252 641 8,888 63,358
Disposal of subsidiaries & W B A A

(note 34) (#7#£34) - - (291) - (291)
Depreciation provided during [ 37 & # 15

the year - (13,725) (3,000) (12,794) (29,519)
Exchange realignment BE 5 A (91) (4,441) (187) (3,032) (7,751)
At 30 June 2019, net of R20194F6 A30F -

accumulated depreciation HREHTE 51,882 130,170 5,883 74,764 262,699
At 30 June 2019: R201946 A30F :

Cost AR A 51,882 155,674 12,866 101,216 321,638

Accumulated depreciation 2EME - (25,504) (6,983) (26,452) (58,939)

Net carrying amount REFE 51,882 130,170 5,883 74,764 262,699

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEEERATE 129
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 and the
consequential unprecedented disruptions to the Group’s
business operations and developments as further detailed
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements,
coupled with certain challenging external environment,
directly or indirectly, affecting the Group, especially
with regard to its cinema operation in Hong Kong,
have significantly affected the operating and financial
performances of various cinemas of the Group, as well
as their future outlook and development. The specific
effect of these events, changes in circumstances and
expected market development (collectively, the “Changes
in Circumstances”) on respective cinemas of the
Group became more apparent in the second half of
the financial year, after certain planning and forecasting
process that underpinned the year end impairment review.
Based on relevant impairment testing of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment (“PP&E”) and right-of-use
assets (“ROU Assets”) as at 30 June 2020, the Group
recognised impairment loss arising from the Changes in
Circumstances of HK$38,040,000 and HK$53,987,000,
respectively (2019: Nil), in respect of certain PP&E
and ROU Assets which belong to the Group’s cinema
operation segment. The impairment loss for the year was
determined based on the recoverable amounts of the
relevant CGUs to which those impaired PP&E and ROU
Assets relate (the “Relevant CGUs”), which are their
values in use, totalling HK$659,274,000 as at 30 June
2020, as further detailed below.
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13. W% - WRRRE(E)

ME - BBERZREURERAESE
EZRE

H2020F {12019 B M i SR B3 M &
BEHAEBXEBEERERAERD
AFTABRNTE (LRSI RERMN
T21) ERETAKEENINGRE (B
B EE) Y ERAER  BRIRERS
BrgEhm EAMYEANAERSE
PRHEERVIERE  URFEEZERK
AERER -ZEEMH BRE(EKE
HmHER(REEREL]) &8 TIE
FRBERF[MZRELBARFE 8
AEBSEBRNABYERAVREE
MTEFEESENHEB - REAEER
2020F6GH30H 2% M RRE (Y
¥ BERRBDULEAEEE(HER
EEEDZEBRENR  mETEBRAE
EEEREESEIYE  BBREE
UWRERAEEEMS  AEBE®RAKRE
1B &1k 2 8 8 & 18 % 5l £38,040,000
78 7T 53,987,000/ 7T (20194F : &) - 1A
2020F6H30H  AFEREEEIE
REZEEREDE  #ERZEAR
FRHEEEEBZHABRcELESENUY
AlkEsE((HEREEEEN])ET
(BFEESZFRAEME) S £ A659,274,000
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Year ended 30 June 2020 #; Z£2020F6830H It F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

(continued)
Impairment testing of the Relevant CGUs

For the Group’s cinema operation segment, impairment
is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
each individual cinema, being the CGU to which the
respective PP&E and ROU Assets relate. As at 30 June
2020, the recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets/forecasts
covering the remaining lease term (including any
expected renewal period, as appropriate) of the relevant
leased cinema property approved by management.
Management considers such projections for impairment
testing covering a period in excess of five years is
justified based on (i) the specific nature of the underlying
business (including the growth potential of each cinema)
and particular aspects of the film exhibition sector; and
(i) the industry knowledge and relevant experience of
management in preparing such projections based on what
management’s considers as reasonable and appropriate
assumptions that represent management’s best estimate
of the range of economic conditions and expected market
development that management expects would exist over
the relevant remaining lease term. For the current year, the
pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
for the respective CGUs were in the range of 11.5% to
13.5% reflecting specific risks relating to the relevant
CGUs.

13. W%  BBERREB(E)

Mk HERRBURERAEE
EZmEGE)

HERESEEEN ZRERR
MAEBZHREE EME - BMETD
BRAFHSEBHR 2T REESEE - A
HEME BEREEARTEAEEE
FRAZReEXBMNET - 12020964
30R  MEEABM 2 REE ﬁaﬁ
FREBNHEZIET EFRAKER
B EXRERBHESREME 2 FHA
EH(BETABEHERS  w@E/A) 2o
BEE FEAMSHZESREEN -
EREERAZEARBRAFU LN RER
AZFEANRAER *¢ﬁﬂomﬁi
ﬁZ%%ﬁE@ﬁi%ﬁhzfﬁ )
NEZHRMITENERFTE: &(i)E 2
BREFRAEGEEE Zﬁﬂ'ﬁé&
ﬁﬁNMMﬁ%ﬂ%&mﬁ i)l
j“ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬂﬁmﬁwm
ﬁﬁ%ﬁEZ%ﬂhﬁ i [E & B BT 5
BRI EEMRT RAFE BHEHRS
EABMNERRIES A= 2 A8,
BWRAENF115%E13.5% 2 K®E
BEEREELEEUZEERR -
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

14. LEASES 14. HE
The Group as a lessee KEBERAHEA
The Group has lease contracts for various offices and AEEHEREARNALENRAE
cinemas used in its operations. Leases of properties B HEEH KEEYMEHEENTH
are negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 15 years. RNF2E15F2HE - AEBEBEZIH
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and HEEBEDREDHETAEBINZ RE -
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There ATHEAYBREREERLTZA
are several lease contracts that included extension BRI -

options and variable lease payments.

(@ Right-of-use assets @@ FEAEEE
The carrying amount of the Group’s ROU Assets and AEERAFENGTRAREE 2K
the movements during the year are as follows: HEREHNAT :

30 June 2020 20206 H30H

At 1 July 2019 R201947H1H 636,626

Additions* = 649,215

Depreciation charge TERX (90,195)

Lease modifications HEBE] (64,838)

Impairment (note) AR (H aE) (53,987)

Exchange realignment ME 5,8 & (12,494)

At 30 June 2020 R2020%6A30H 1,064,327

- Under HKFRS 16, ROU Assets are recognised at the * RIFE BB RELAF165E - B

commencement date of the lease. The commencement HEMRGBRERTAZEEE -
date of the lease is defined as the date on which a EFRBABMALME AT AREA
lessor makes an underlying asset available for use by FREBEEEEZR -@BRASEER
a lessee. Since the Group took possession of, or was 2019 7TH1IR B AR EE 2
given control over, the use of the assets after 1 July FAE AEERKHEERRETAE
2019, the relevant lease payments under the term of BEECNRABERARNFEENR
the leases were recognised by the Group as additions =

for the current year.

As the relevant lease contractual documents were R E BN E BB S®R S &R
entered into by the Group before the adoption F16HKAI R AT EEHEE L -
of HKFRS 16, the lease arrangements treated as ZEVHRIBEBRRES EHEA
operating leases when complying with the Listing HEERAEERE  ZEHER
Rules’ notification and publication requirements as at BWwRASERE - Al XA 7]
the respective dates of such documents. Accordingly, R E B I SRS ERFE165E12
the Company is not required to re-comply with the BEARZEEMEEERBNETER
Listing Rules’ notification and publication requirements BYFRAMZRXS50 FHHEINNES
in relation to the notifiable transactions for such RAEENK -

relevant leases after the adoption of HKFRS 16.

Note: Further details regarding the impairment of ROU Wa: BEAEEFERELSE Y BENE
Assets during the year are set out in note 13 to the — S HEHN G EREMT
consolidated financial statements. 13 o
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

14. LEASES (continued) 14.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HE(E

AEBEARBAE

b) HEEE
AEEHEEGE2ERAEANRES N
T

30 June 2020 20206 H30H
Carrying amount at 1 July 2019 R2019F7A1B Z BREE 628,571
New leases MEE 593,492
Accretion of interest recognised during FEBRZEHE
the year 47,455
Payments e (38,021)
Lease modifications HEBE] (64,838)
Exchange realignment M 5,8 & (12,446)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 R2020F 6 A30H Z BREE 1,154,213
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mEE D 50,457
Non-current portion EmE D 1,103,756
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed MEBBEZIHINMOBEERGS
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. B 75 3R 3= BT 5E40 ©
(€) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation ) FEAEMEBANEZAZERAN
to leases are as follows: N

Interest on lease liabilities HEAGERNER
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets fFAEEE 2T EM X
Expense relating to short-term leases* EHEHHEEZER"
Expense relating to leases of low-value FHAREBEEEHNEZER"
assets” 29
Variable lease payments not included in EEARFAHEEEFEZ
the measurement of lease liabilities* CIE-ZEN-E0F 178
Total amount recognised in profit or loss BRARERAZBESE 137,963
- Included in “Selling, distribution and other cinema . FTATHE © 988 R H A ELBr & & 5
operating expenses” % |
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note d HEZHRSRUEBEDNEBENEGS
35(c) to the consolidated financial statements. B 75 3 = MY 5E35(c) °
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE
15. GOODWILL 15. &

30 June 2019 2019 6 A30H
At 1 July 2018: 2018F7H1H :
Cost B A 98,250
Accumulated impairment ZERE (29,990)
Net carrying amount RmEFE 68,260
At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated impairment 20187818 + M1k R 5t A 68,260
Impairment during the year FERBE (28,273)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEWB AR (A iE34) (39,987)
At 30 June 2019 R2019F 6 A30H -
At 30 June 2019: R20194 6 HA30H :

Cost D8N -

Accumulated impairment 2ERE -
Net carrying amount FREFE -

134

The goodwill as at 1 July 2018 represented the amount
attributable to the acquisition of Jade Dynasty Multi-Media
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“JDMM Group”). The goodwill was primarily attributable
to synergies originally expected to arise in connection
with the production, distribution and licensing of animated
television episodes and theatrical films business. The
goodwill was derecognised upon the disposal of certain
subsidiaries in the prior year (note 34).

Impairment test on goodwill

The goodwill was allocated to the production, distribution
and licensing of animated television episodes and
theatrical films CGU (the “JDMM Group CGU”").

During the year ended 30 June 2019, management
considered that the profitability and the operating
performance of the production, distribution and licensing
of animated television episodes and theatrical films were
affected by the change in the market condition in the
Mainland China which caused the deferral of the release
of certain animation projects and had an impact on their
expected income.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 “F #f

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEZEEERLT

MR2018F7HIBZEENIEEWEE 2
ZIEBERARRENB AR (ABEIELE
HzEREEEEA2SE HEX

FENRERBELEHRAUNEZEE
ERAFEREBREY 2®E - BITEE
EER ZBmEBERAI—FHERTHEB
NaE R AR I E TSR (M 5E34) ©

mEZRE S
FERSEEDRERAERBREY
2B BORBEZRSELEN((F
EHSKAREECREELBEM)) -

B E2019F6HA30HILFE BERER
RO BDEEERERBREFZEE
BOLREZBNENREERRRE
TEAMTSERARBLEZEE  BHE
THEEA 2 HBRTEERFZEHATAHRK
A e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I RS HRER MR

Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

15.

16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test on goodwill (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the recoverable
amount of the JDMM Group CGU was assessed by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
carried out by an independent firm of valuers. The
valuation was appraised on the value in use basis. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation were
those regarding discount rate and budgeted/forecasted
gross margin and revenue. The Group estimated discount
rate using the rate that reflected the then current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the production, distribution and licensing of
animated television episodes and theatrical fims. Budgeted/
forecasted gross margin and revenue were based on past
performances and expectations regarding the industry
sector relating to the production, distribution and licensing
of animated television episodes and theatrical films.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group had
prepared 3-year cash flow projections derived from the most
recent financial budget of the JDMM Group CGU using
a pre-tax discount rate of 22.8% and the projections was
extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3% per annum
for subsequent years. Since the recoverable amount of
the JDMM Group CGU was less than its carrying amount,
an impairment loss of HK$28,273,000 for goodwill was
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2019.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. B8 (&)

BEZBENRE)
5212019¢6H30E|¢$r“ TEHZE
BReEB RS ELEMZAIKRO S ER
$ REE2E/UGEMITETZE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ HEZFEABEEELET
Al e FREEFECHARBREARZS
ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂ%ﬂ&%Az
BRE -AEBFRARMERMSHEE
HEEELDEERFERBREY
B BORREZETERRBR MR
KoJHE /FHAEFMNRRKADIERSS
ERFEREBRETZ Z®E - BITEE
ETERBZBERREEHMAEE -

HZEZ2019F6A30HILFE  AEER T
EHZEREEECASEASEURER
FMBEERRIFRSREEA - F4
RATARIR K22 8% N EE AR FEILTF
S ZIFBELEREREEMSGSL - HAREE
PEHREE B EEBN 2AIKES
BERNEREE - Eit - 8122019664
308 IEFE MR 2R E B 828,273,000
BT °

BRVEE

30 June 2019 201946 A30H
At 1 July 2018: 72018F7H1H :

Cost X A 31,523
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (3,862)
Net carrying amount BREF(E 27,661
At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated amortisation 201847818 » Mk 25T i 27,661
Additions — acquired separately RE - BIUEA 4,524
Amortisation provided during the year FEBHEEE (1,942)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) &K B R R (K a£34) (30,190)
Exchange realignment PE 5 B (53)
At 30 June 2019 2019 6 A30H -

At 30 June 2019: M2019F 6301 :
Cost X AR -
Accumulated amortisation 3| -
Net carrying amount FREFE -
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17. FILM AND TELEVISION PROGRAMME 17. EXRERTAMRRE

RIGHTS
30 June 2019 2019 6 A30H
At 1 July 2018: 2018F7H1H :
Cost X A 25,425
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (11,394)
Net carrying amount BREFE 14,031
At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated H2018F7H1H » 1Bk R &t
amortisation 14,031
Amortisation provided during the year FEEBIERE (8,111)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HE KB R R (K a234) (5,056)
Exchange realignment bE H 8 & (864)
At 30 June 2019 7201996 H30H -
At 30 June 2019: MR2019F 6 H30H :

Cost DN -

Accumulated amortisation BT 8H -
BRMEFE -

Net carrying amount

H ZEZ2019F6A30RILFE - AEEZZE
ERECRERMEZAIHEERER
MR ERE B R ERE B RE -
NEFTHEFZRERED B MRE GG

During the vyear ended 30 June 2019, the Group
reviewed its library of film and television programme
rights to reassess the estimated recoverable amounts of

136

the film and television programme rights with reference
to marketability of each film and television programme
and the then current market condition. The estimated
recoverable amounts of the film and television programme
rights were determined based on either net realisable
values of film rights to be disposed of or value in use
calculations which used the present value of the expected
future cash flows arising from the sub-licensing and
distribution of the film and television programme rights
subsequent to the completion of the relevant film and
television programme productions, which were derived
from discounting the projected future cash flows at a pre-
tax discount rate of 22.8%.

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations mainly
related to the estimations of cash inflows/outflows which
include forecasted sales and gross margin, growth rate
and discount rate. Such estimations were based on past
experience and management’s expectations of the then
market development.
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

18. FILM AND TELEVISION PROGRAMME
PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS

18. RIFFZER

EREHE

30 June 2019 201946 A30H

At 1 July 2018 R2018F7H1H 9,192
Additions wE 5,608
Write-off 5 54 (3,110)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEWB QR (A E34) (11,327)
Exchange realignment M H R (363)
At 30 June 2019 R2019F 6 A30H -

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19. gﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘f)\}ééz&ﬁﬂﬁ

Investments in film productions (note (a))

REFHEZKRE

( #f it (a))
Investments in listed equity securities ETIRAFHEE
(note (b)) (B £ (b))
Notes: B 7 -
(@) Investments in film productions (a)

The Group’s investments in film productions as at 30 June
2020 and 2019 are mandatorily classified as financial assets
at FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the Group had investments
in several film production projects under several investment
agreements, which entitled the Group, among others, the rights
to share the net profit or loss of the respective films attributable
to the Group, as appropriate, in accordance with the terms of
the respective investment agreements.

The Group measured, at initial recognition, the cost of these
investments based on the cash consideration for these
investments.

All these film productions had been completed and
the carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
represented the fair value of the estimated net future cash
flows from these films attributable to the Group.

Investments in listed equity securities
The listed equity investments were classified as financial
assets at FVPL as they were held for trading.

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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164,969

5,814

170,783

REFZEEZRE
RE B R20204F & 2019F6 AB0H R E %
BIEZRERBDERBAAEEARE
mZ%ﬁﬂﬁE lJ:tJ-jEEb_A/\CI ri‘/jiﬁf//lbi
FEINAERFIE -

20204 201946 H30H * AEEFH &
FTREATRERZECREETRIER
B HEARESOHDREABEOER A%
EEEEHSPBEEZEAEEEGEZSHE
BERFa A EE(MER) -

FEERVERRBAEEBEZSREZR
TREFEZEREZRAE -

AZEEZEHETK  MNMEH
RZEEEAAEEEEZSETZZMHA
ARREREFENRAEE -

tHRAESERE
EHRARESBRIRAABENARRE
ZEBMEE UWITARER/RERS -
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RECEIVABLE

The contingent consideration receivable represented the
profit guarantee given by Jade Sparkle Holdings Limited
and Mr. Huang Yulang (formerly known as “Mr. Wong
Chun Loong”) (collectively referred to as the “Vendors”)
to the Group in relation to the acquisition of JDMM Group.
The contingent consideration receivable was designated
as a financial asset at FVPL upon initial recognition and
was measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The movements of the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable during the year ended 30 June
2019 were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ERER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 20. B ARKE

UK ARERBBIERAERAGIRE
ERRSEAE (R ERELE DSEIZEF
BEADHUMBEEEHZREEERAE
B 2 FREE - RS AKER
BHRIAREERRANBEFARREZ
TRMEE  URNREMRZAALBET
2 o B E2019F6H30R IEFE - Bl
AREZLARBEZSMT:

HK$'000
FAT

30 June 2019 20196 A30H
At 1 July 2018 7201847810 7,210
Amount received during the year FEESWHKIA (7,864)
Gain on derecognition BRI ER 2 W R 654
At 30 June 2019 7201996 H30H -

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the acquisition of JDMM Group (the “S&P
Agreement”), the Vendors had given a guarantee to
the Group that the audited consolidated profit after tax
of JDMM Group would be no less than HK$10,000,000
(the “Guaranteed Sum”) for each of three financial years
ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 (the “Guaranteed Periods”) (the “Profit
Guarantee”).

In case the Profit Guarantee was not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendors should pay 78.64% of
the difference between the Guaranteed Sum and the
audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group
(the “Shortfall”) to the Group. During the Guaranteed
Periods, the audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM
Group did not meet the Guaranteed Sum. Hence, the
Vendors were required to pay the Shortfall to the Group
in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in the
S&P Agreement.

Upon the expiry of the Guaranteed Periods and the
settlement of the Shortfall in accordance with the
terms and conditions stated in the S&P Agreement, the
contingent consideration receivable was derecognised
during the year ended 30 June 2019 which resulted in the
recognition of a gain on the derecognition of HK$654,000
to the Group in profit or loss during that year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 i

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBHERAF

BEVKBIEVHZEEEB EEHH
((BEEHR]) ZSEHFCRALAEEIRE
RiE  BEEHRZEEEEHE2016F12
A318 2017412 A31H K& 2018412 A31
HE=EBFE(SBRELHB]) 2L
BB &A% K 510,000,000
BLT(REBSBEDOERRED -

MAEFEE 2SN REREK  ZEE
HARRBECRELIENZREEBL
REZERRESEMNEZR(E8])
278.64% XN FAKE - N5 AR EH
Bl FERZHEREEZKEBRERER
RAaaMIRTaRESE  Hib - %
EENARBEEWS T 2 &R RIF
HRANEENERE -

REEREFHBEEREBIBEEEHHEA
BIER RIEHEEBE=BE BRKAR
BREDREE2019F6A308 EFE R
IR ERALSBERZFEREIEBREAN
e R 4% I 3R Uk 25654,00078 JT °
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE
21. INVENTORIES 2. &

Inventories mainly represent food and beverage,
consumables and other goods relating to the Group’s
cinema operation.

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

FEITERERASERRZEZRM
LEH  HERREMES -

. BEZEWK

Trade receivables B 5 W
Impairment BE

5142
(381)

4,761

For the Group’s box office takings and sale of concession
goods and other products, payments on demand or in
advance in cash or by major credit/debit cards or other
electronic/mobile payment methods are normally required,
with the settlements from the corresponding banks or
other financial institutions normally within 2 to 30 days.
The Group’s trading terms with its other customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally 1 month
from the date of billing. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts
due from related companies/parties of HK$563,000 as
at 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil), which are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable within 1 month from the
date of invoice.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

RASBREEBA - BFEmMkHEME
MmZHE  —RUAREINEBERRS
AR REAEMEF B8 XA
RASA  FRB|OTIEMB SRS —
REN2EI0RANHEE - NEEEREM
BEPZESBRREIEUNEETAGEE -
EEH-RREEZHERIEAR - A%
B AKEBERERBEZRER A
HEREEEHENANER AREY
B HE SRS RT A TR
FEMEERER EHZBRUFAST

o
ﬁ+ /%\ °

202065308 » FEEE QT AL
FXIE563,000/% 7T (20194F « ) st A K&
EvESEKZ HAEEKRF - Tt
NMERBEZHHBTIEARNEE -

RBEHR BHREAEERAHR
B EBEE 2Rk :

Within 1 month 1E AR 4,734
1 to 3 months 1Z231E A -
Over 3 months 31 A A £ 27
4,761
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

22. EZ W (E)
BREYH 2 HEBRRBEHNT

At the beginning of the year F9] 1,775
Impairment loss (note 7) BB BB (A7) 381
Disposal of subsidiaries k== NEG] (1,775)
At the end of the year FR 381

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using the probability of default approach to measure
ECLs. The probability of default rates are estimated
based on comparable companies with published credit
ratings. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and certain relevant
information that is available at the reporting date about

REREBHELREDIN - KAED
BEFZEFERBEEER - RETE
B ARERERAMERNRFHELDY
BE - ZAERRMELRGER G
HEBEAMNGESEBAIESZAH
BEFH - ERHAMAEEEERR
EROE THBERM -

past events, current conditions and forward-looking credit
risk information.

Loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables of B 5 e WK 2 BB & 1B B 1#381,0007% 7T
HK$381,000 was recognised in the prior year as certain EREFE®RR  AITBHRETESE
trade receivables were in default and considered by WHERENREEHREEERBER
management as credit impaired. BEE -
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

23. AR BERAEMERR

Prepayments AN
Deposits* Za*
Other receivables H th j& W 3Kk

Less: Non-current portion

o FERE BB D

Current portion mENE o

33,985 36,942
39,511 56,030
1,600 1,952
75,096 94,924
(36,338) (56,002)
38,758 38,922

* As at 30 June 2020, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of HK$579,000 (2019: Nil) for certain guarantees issued by
a bank.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to deposits and other receivables for which there
was no recent history of significant default and there
were no material amounts in default. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the
debtors, and the related ECL as at 30 June 2020 and
2019 was considered by management to be minimal.

Lease arrangements with related
companies and related deposits paid
During the current and prior years, the Group had lease
arrangements (the “Lease Arrangements”) with certain
related companies in connection with the leasing of office
and cinema properties from these related companies.
The total nominal amount of deposits paid to the related
companies in connection with the Lease Arrangements of
HK$5,574,000 was included in non-current deposits as
at 30 June 2019. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the
ROU Assets and lease liabilities in connection with the
Lease Arrangements were recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 30 June 2020, the
ROU Assets, the amortised cost of the deposits paid
included in non-current deposits and the lease liabilities
in connection with the Lease Arrangements amounted
to HK$104,310,000, HK$3,662,000 and HK$107,916,000,
respectively.

* R2020F6H30H + AEBEE F — MR TT
B 2 TR KK IR 17 15 78579,00078
7L (20194 « 4&) -

AFALMEHR T SREERITBAYES
ABRERCHREXENTENE S
FEMEKRZER HakotaET
BEBEANEERITE BEEEERAE
20204 K 20196 A30H 2 #HEETEHA (=
EEBITEK-

HEEATZEHELTHEUKRAEER
effEe

RAFERBAFE AEBESETH
ERARRNZEHERARAEZHAE
KEREMESRELTH(HERKED -
HAETHABZENBEARZE S
48 T 185,574,000 7T E K 201946 A30
HEt AERE IS - RIRME BB K
EHERIFE16EK c  HAELHEBRZF
AREEELRMEEBEENEGEETBHRNR
RAPRER - 202066 A30H B EZ
EBEREEE - REBHEKLRFTA
EnBEECENZEURHEERES
A1 £104,310,000/8 7T * 3,662,000 7t &
107,916,000 7t °
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Year ended 30 June 2020 &, £2020F6H30H It F[Z
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERBESEEY

Cash and bank balances B e MIR1T 4 &% m 166,465

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBEAR  AEEAARE(TARY)
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) SHEMIE S RIRTTH# A17,592,000%8 7T
amounted to HK$17,592,000 (2019: HK$68,145,000). (20194 : 68,145,000/8 L) - A R ¥ T8t
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, BERARAHMEY - R BES
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange A3 KON B IR R 1) K45 B - B BE I AT
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, EEERTE) AEBERERBREKES
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the THONEEBHRITEAREL R A HAM
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies B

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Certain cash at banks earns interest at floating rates HETROTGFFRZBAEBABORITFRE
based on applicable bank deposit rates. Short term EEFEANERIDFE - BHEBHFX
time deposits are made for varying periods of between HERRAEIFAZHE  REREERD
1 day and 3 months depending on the immediate BMIEeFRME Wik EREHE 8
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at FRRFIEEREUR B - SRITHERTITFHRR
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank WA HENLDEBEEER IFAIRT -

balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

25. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. EZ BN - Hitt B R KR &
ACCRUALS T E A

Trade payables =Y ANEN (a) 8,678
Accruals Bt &R 19,061
Other payables H th FE A 3K (b) 13,037
40,776
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & £2020F6H30H It F[Z
25. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. ES N  -HMENSNRRE

ACCRUALS (continued) STERE

(@) An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the end (a) MRWMEHKR BEZENFIZREERA
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, Mz EREDIT :
is as follows:

Within 3 months 3@ AR 8,678
Over 3 months 3fE A LA &£ -
8,678
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and EORNAEABTEHER—BRIAMIE
normally settled within 2 months. RR#E °
(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have (b) HMEMNZBITFE  FHERA
an average term of 2 months. m1E A -
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. BB E

Short-term advances received WHEFEHERA

from customers: MIE:

Cinema operation BB & & 11,128 10,934
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received EHNEBERERREEMRBENMIKER
relating to cinema operation. The increase in contract AR RIE - & H B ER2020%F £20194F
liabilities as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 was mainly due 6H30BZEMEFEHMRREWMEK -
to the increase in short-term advances received from AEBEREHEEENERYME,LEH
customers as a result of an increase in the number TERFRIEAATIEM ©
of cinemas of the Group at the end of the respective
reporting periods.
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Current
Bank borrowing repayable within

Non-current
Other loan — unsecured

mE

fEERERE -
5 15

one year or on demand —
unsecured

FERD

RITERR —FAHK

HA B3R - EE A

27. AFIERTRAEMEBE

(b)

144

The bank borrowing bears interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate plus 2.2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had the Bank Loan
Facility amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2019: Nil), of
which an aggregate amount of HK$2,000,000 (2019:
Nil) was utilised as at 30 June 2020.

The terms of the bank borrowing of the Group
contain a repayment on demand clause and,
accordingly, the bank borrowing has been classified
as a current liability. For the purpose of the above
analysis, the bank borrowing has been analysed as
a bank borrowing repayable within one year or on
demand.

The other loan bears interest at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate plus 2% per annum.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had the Other Loan
Facility amounting to HK$1,200,000,000 (2019: Nil),
of which an aggregate loan principal amount of
HK$144,000,000 (2019: Nil) was utilised as at 30
June 2020.

The other loan of the Group with a carrying amount
of HK$146,313,000 (including accrued interest)
as at 30 June 2020 has been classified as a
non-current liability as the lender who is a related
party of the Group (i.e., a family member of a
deemed substantial shareholder or a director of the
Company) has agreed not to demand repayment of
the other loan together with all accrued interest and
all outstanding amounts until 20 January 2022.

Emperor Culture Group Limited REX{LEZEEERLT
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(a)

2,000 -

146,313 -
148,313 -

RITEERBEBBRITRERSINE
B22%t8 -

R2020F6A30H © REBEEHIRIT
B 7R & 20,000,000 7T (20194 :
) Hr 4 ££2 000,000/ 7T (2019
) R2020F6 A0EE B

AEBEZRITERGRESEEKX
BRUEH - Bt RITEREE D
BRRBABE - ERDTME -
RITERCHEAOT AR —FAHKE
EREENRITER -

Hih BERREBRITAEFEINE

B2%ErE o

2020F6 A30H « ANEE A EAM
B @ &1,200,000,00058 7T (2019
F:\E) HPEFRASREAH
144,000,000/ 7T (20194 : &) A
20206 A30HEE A -

K &£ B R2020F6A30B8 RMEE A
146,313,000/ ;T 2 E M E 3k (B 15
EEFBIERDBAIIERBAR -
IHRER (REBBEAL A
ARARIEBRBETERER—RES
ZREKE)REEE2022F1H20
HR A EkEEHEMERERMEAE
EEFIERAMBEHMAEESSE -
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE
28. PROVISIONS

28. &1

29.

30 June 2020 202046 H30H

At 1 July 2019 201947816 —
Additional provisions KON 44,816
At 30 June 2020 R2020F 6 A30H 44,816

Pursuant to the terms of relevant tenancy agreements, the
Group, as the lessee of certain leases of properties, has
the obligations to reinstate the relevant leased properties
to their original state or to a condition as specified in the

REAEEERRGR  AREERET
MEREZABAREBEESRLER
Ribl - ARTEENBEHANEER
RAEEEAEHEFAT 2 RN B

respective tenancy agreements at the cost of the Group at FAEAEERE-

the end/upon the termination of the relevant lease terms.

The provision for reinstatement costs was determined BEXNABEDEREERE2ZERALR
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by Eﬁ&—ﬁﬁé{ﬂf’ﬁtﬂz{ﬁj‘“ HETMEE °
management with reference to past experience and ZERBRBRGEHELR SR BFER

available information. The assumptions and estimates are
reviewed, and revised where appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

29.

mEt ke (n@Em) -

iE %E B4 1]
REREBEABEREERAFEZZEHN
T

EEHEARE

30 June 2020 20206 830H
At 30 June 2019 20196 H30H
Effect of adoption of RN E BB RELER
HKFRS 16 ERlsiid-2 84,713 84,713

R2019FE7A1B (E5)

At 1 July 2019 (restated)
FEMNBRIE GIA)

Deferred tax debited/

84,713 84,713

(credited) to profit or loss IR IR (A aE11)

during the year (note 11) (2,631) (2,311)
Exchange realignment b 3, 38 & (3,090) (3,090)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 75’\2020$6H 3082

30 June 2020 RIEHIEBEESE

Emperor Culture Group Limited
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE
29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

29. ELERIA(E)

Deferred tax assets

EEBEEREE

30 June 2020 20206 H30H

At 30 June 2019 R2019%F6 H30H

Effect of adoption of %%%%Hﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ”
HKFRS 16 F165E 2 o &

R2019E7A1R (&%)
FEPEZEAA S FR)

At 1 July 2019 (restated)
Deferred tax credited/

(debited) to profit or loss ZEFERLIA (K aE11)
during the year (note 11)

Exchange realignment PE 3 A B

Gross deferred tax assets at 722020 6H30H 2
30 June 2020 RIEHIEEERR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of HK$469,947,000 (2019:
HK$268,106,000), subject to the agreement by the
relevant tax authorities, that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose, of which an aggregate of
HK$316,051,000 (2019: HK$175,398,000) is available
indefinitely and the remaining unrecognised tax losses
will expire in around 1 year to 7 years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have mainly arisen in entities that have been loss-making
or due to the unpredictable future taxable profit streams
of these entities, and in the opinion of the directors, it is
currently not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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83,710
83,710

(1,655)
(3,063)

(1,335)
(3,063)

78,992 79,312

RBERR > AERERERV AL B
7$469,947,0007% 7T (20194F : 268,106,000
AIL) RS BERENRRT -
&% 5 DU 5 B AT B A SR B AR B 5 B IR
BEZARZAKERBEHN - Eha
316,051,000 7T (20194 : 175,398,000/
TO)EEMHIR BRI RERRAEIER
AREHERRERTOEHN  SRO1FE
TEEm  HRZEFEEREIZEELOEG
BENER ARZFER T A AN
ARERBOGENR - BEFER/BRIAA
EERSAREABRZERE AN - B
BT RRALZEHEEERBELCHRBAEE -
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Year ended 30 June 2020 & & 2020F6A30H IFFfE

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. EERIE(Z)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets HRVIFHER B TEEFMEBHREEMN
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated BECEGEMBMRAKRPETEE -
statement of financial position. The following is an analysis HRVBHRERENEAEERELEREM
of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial Rz oMT:

reporting purposes:

Gross deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEE BT 79,312 -
Gross deferred tax liabilities BEERIERBEAES (79,312) -
Net deferred tax liabilities REFE MR K F
recognised in the consolidated MRZBEERIBEAE
statement of financial position PR -
30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. ERITRA
Shares iz

Authorised: EE
50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000 (20194 :
(2019: 50,000,000,000) 50,000,000,000) & & & H E
ordinary shares of 0.018 L 2 & i@k
HK$0.01 each 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBEAR:
3,213,340,890 3,213,340,890 (20194 :
(2019: 3,213,340,890) 3,213,340,890) fit 45 A% (&
ordinary shares of 0.018 L 2 & i ik
HK$0.01 each 32,133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ERER M EE

Year ended 30 June 2020 & E2020F6A30H IFFfE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 8 November 2011. The major terms of the
Scheme are summarised as follows:

1.

148

Purpose of the Scheme: To enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants to subscribe for
shares in the Company as incentive or rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees,
including any directors of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds an equity interest.

(a) Total number of shares available for issue as at
29 September 2020 (i.e., the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements)
under the Scheme: 321,334,089 shares

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at the date of this report: 10%

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Scheme:

(a) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the
Company or their respective associates in any
one year exceeding the higher of 0.10% of
the shares in issue and with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option: At any time from the date of
acceptance of the option to such a date determined
by the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) but in any event not exceeding 10 years
from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised: No minimum period
unless otherwise determined by the Board.

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEXEBHERAF
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3. BRESE

B
AN R 2011411 A8 H R 4 — 18 B8 I% 1
TE([Zard)) o T8l 2 EZ KM
Moan

1.

ZarBlZ BH): BARAAEER
SEERTHEREARBARARARK
o ERHEBAREEMIERR 2 %

ER:-AER2EERHEREER (B
ARRMEMESR) HMBARHRA
SEERKERRFAEREZEM

= g

HH= °

(a) MRIEZETEI1K2020F9H29H
(BRZEHFREMBEMER 2 E
HED AT F &7l MmEE:
321,334,0890% f% 17

(b) MAREAHEHEDHITRG
ZBADE 10%

SHEATEALAKRSRETE
BHES LR

(a) FRIEEMEHE - TRIEEM
12 AR SHBBEETRNG
Z1% : &

(b)y REM—FRMFEZRKEKA
NREBIYIERITESAHES
BBBARD ZEBRE &
BBEEITRM 2010% & E
BB 385,000,000/8 7T (LA 5
FARE) BB R E -

TTEBBREE T RO BR: P&
MBERERAREEARRESS (&
EE)EEZ2EBBHAZEME
B EREMBERT  FARBEER
th B FH104F -

BRETENLEARA ZREHR
GRUEEFERTTEE BRYER
FEER o
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e B ISR R EE
Year ended 30 June 2020 # Z2020F6A30H It FE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Share options (continued)

32.

7.

(a)

Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(b)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date
of grant; and

Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board
(subject to adjustment) and will not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for trades in one or more board lots of shares
on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme: approximately 1
year (expiring on 7 November 2021).

During the year, no option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
70 of the consolidated financial statements.

(@)

(b)

Share premium

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the
cancellation of repurchased shares and accordingly
reduction of nominal value of share capital of the
Company.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

31.

32.

BIRESTEI(Z)
BREE
7. (a) HBENERERERTANN
B HRE:1.008 7T
(b) WESKAIREN RS BMTTRZ
B - R HEAREET28H N
)5
(c) EEBRENFEBHNMRAED
BEXER: @A o
8. EETEFEEZE%E:
TEEB(RIETAR)  HESSE
FoOERBERTIESE (@R
RYHEESE —Fs A RO EH
RHEHRERTRZBRMDUTIE :
OREBEERTFTEHEIAEZS B
NEBTFSERERFA R ZFEY
WTHE: MCe)RHmEE -
9. HZitEI MBS ZFH 419 (2021
FNMATHEER) °
RAFE  Zet8E THEBRERD X
T ERE BT WaESKES
KBy o
&

AEENREERBEFENEESE
BB R A B 5 R ET0E M G A B
HEBE2T -

() BiimfE
A1 3 (B BR 2 P 52 3£ 19814F
DEEBA0BIRE -

EXEE
EXEEHERATHEBERS
RAR BB AR R A M -

(b)
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32. RESERVES (continued)
(c) Contributed surplus

32. HE(E
(c) BBk

Contributed surplus represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the
capital reduction and share premium reduction as a
result of the capital reorganisation of the Company
on 8 May 2014.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available for
distribution under certain circumstances. However,
the Company cannot make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets

AN B e s A AR A R 20145 A8
B Az IS 2 48 1 1T IR A EIR
K B8 A5 4 (B Bl R i {1 & AN BReE 4 2
S HE o

R A R EI981F A A A (K&
) BMEBRETERLTIH®HS
Ko AT s RATBR » AAAET
BESMBGTELDIK: ()ARAF
ERF RN D IKE S 8EE T HEE
HEaf HARAEEZAER
EFEMEREARE -

would thereby be less than its liabilities.

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

BP. BEEERFEREREZHEE
i /8 2 A

AEBEHRAEANFERER <K BRA
MFBIMT:

Percentage of equity interest held by  3F 1= % # &5 AT i IR &
non-controlling interests: Bot:
Sino Spirit Group* Sino Spirit & & *

45%

Loss for the year allocated to PTEHREFERERZ
non-controlling interests: FEBE:
Sino Spirit Group* Sino Spirit & #* (11,045) (5,041)
Accumulated balance of FEREZREEAD
non-controlling interests at the MR
reporting date:
Sino Spirit Group* Sino Spirit& & * (36,126) (24,389)
* Representing Sino Spirit and its subsidiaries $8 Sino Spirit &z E i & A &
150 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERA T
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH B EEERFERERZHEE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Mt AR (&)
INTERESTS (continued) B \ R
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial —F%Z{L/T\Sino S\pirit%ZEﬁ‘&Eﬁ}%E% °
information of Sino Spirit Group. The amounts disclosed ﬁﬁﬁ%2%§5ﬁ$%%¢%2ﬁ HE
are before any inter-company eliminations: REHAT 2 S8

Revenue A EREY 38,371
Total expenses, net BT FE (42,729) (49,573)
Loss for the year FEEE (24,545) (11,202)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZHEBEES (25,900) (13,430)
Current assets MEEE 4,550 15,371
Non-current assets EMBE E 114,752 36,089
Current liabilities mEaE (107,029) (105,658)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (92,553) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating KB, (FR) & & EE
activities ZRERBEFHE 4,779 (13,618)
Net cash flows used in investing AREEEES 2RE
activities e (239) (1,569)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing KB, (FAR) @& &
activities ZREREFHE (4,748) 728
Net decrease in cash and cash RekBeSEMRLD
equivalents pEig-L] (208) (14,459)
Note: The above details do not include the financial information Ma: L ";ﬂﬁ ERNCECEEL S L
of JDMM Group which was owned as to 78.64% by Magic HBER » K20194 6717 Al EMagic
Well Holdings Limited (“Magic Well") before the disposal of Well Holdings Limited 2 &) £ [ff B 22 =]
Magic Well Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively (%78 [Magic Well @ 5] E2H %
referred to as “Magic Well Group”) on 17 June 2019 (see I f2 S5 @ fMagic Well Holdings Limited
note 34). (Magic Well))#5 578.64% 2 # % (&
M 5£34) ©
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX/LEZEBEERLF 151
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HEHWEQF

Disposal of Magic Well Group

On 17 June 2019, the Group completed the disposal
of 100% equity interest in Magic Well Group to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of
HK$48,000,000 which resulted in a gain on disposal
of HK$3,476,000. Magic Well Group was principally
engaged in the production, distribution and licensing
of animated television episodes and theatrical films in
previous years. Details of the disposal were also set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 17 June 2019.

Summary of the effect on disposal of Magic Well Group
is as follows:

H & Magic Well & E
R2019F6A17H - AE B UR & KB
48,000,000 T KM — R BILEFE=F
& Magic Well & B 2100% X # - & 4%
& Uk 253,476,000 7T ° Magic Well&
ERBTFEFENRERE . BOEAE
BHEEGHRELEREY - ZLES
HZF#BNENARRHE A2019F6 8
172 RE °

tHEMagic Wel Bl 2 X EBEMT :

Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W BEREE 13 291
Intangible assets mEEE 16 30,190
Goodwill = 15 39,987
Film and television programme rights B RERE B RE 17 5,056
Film and television programme RER s EXRERETE
production in progress 18 11,327
Trade receivables 2 5 FE WK 1,700
Prepayments, deposits and TR R Rk HME KR
other receivables 1,153
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEYD 129
Trade payables, other payables and BOEMNR - HtEANRK
accruals Bt &R (23,736)
Contract liabilities AHEaE (5,994)
Other borrowing EMmEE 35(b) (12,000)
Non-controlling interests I R 5 (3,884)
44,219
Exchange fluctuation reserve PE R B (15 305
44,524
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 6 BT BB A A it 6 3,476
48,000
Satisfied by: NP
Cash Re 48,000
152 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{LEXEBEERAA
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Disposal of Magic Well Group (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

4. HEMB AR (&)

H & Magic Well £ B (&)
FRALHEWNBARNRE LB CEEY
MAFENDTOT -

Cash consideration RERE 48,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrtERERIBITER (129)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BRI HEMB AR 2R N

of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEEYRAFRE 47,871

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(iii)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the
Group had non-cash additions to ROU Assets
and lease liabilities of HK$604,399,000 and
HK$593,492,000, respectively (2019: Nil), in
respect of lease arrangements for leased
properties.

During the year ended 30 June 2020,
provisions for reinstatement costs in respect
of certain leased properties of the Group
amounting to HK$44,816,000 (2019: Nil) were
recognised as additions to ROU Assets of the
Group during the year.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the
Group had non-cash lease modifications
to ROU Assets and lease liabilities of
HK$64,838,000 and HK$64,838,000,
respectively (2019: Nil), in respect of lease
arrangements for certain leased properties.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

/. ZEREREBRME

() TEFREXRS

()

(iii)

HEXCEXEEBERAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 5k

#H £2020F 64308 Ik F & -
AEBERERYE 2HERE
DHBEEEREEEREES
& 2 FF 3 & 7 604,399,000
77T }2593,492,0007 7T (2019
FE) o

#H £2020F6H30H IF FE -
MAEEE THEYE 218
1& 18 B AN B 18 44,816,000 7T
(2019F - M) BRARARFER
EEFEREEEZAE -

#H £2020F6H308 Ik F & -
rEEBERETHRAME A
EXHPRGETRAEEE
LHEBEZIFREBEEER
64,838,000/ JT 164,838,000
7T (20194F - ) -
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B. mEBRERERMT(E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

1=

b) REFHELEZEEBEZET

30 June 2020 20206 H30H

At 30 June 2019 201946 H30H

Effect of adoption of BRaNE BB
HKFRS 16 HEAFE165%

B/ a0
e

=

At 1 July 2019 (restated) #2019 7H1H

(E5) =

Changes from financing BEBRESREZ
cash flows B 145,982
New leases NHEE =
Interest expense B 2,331
Lease modifications MEERT -
Exchange realignment  [& ¥ F8 % —
At 30 June 2020 7202096 430H 148,313

628,571

628,571

(38,021)
593,492
47,455
(64,838)
(12,446)

1,154,213

5,651

(3,962)

1,689

2,020

30 June 2019 201946 A30H
At 1 July 2018 R2018%F7H1H - 15,553 44,870
Changes from financing cash flows ®BERER=E Z

b= 9,963 (9,400) (1,281)
Interest expense A 2R 2,037 - -
Exchange realignment ME H, 58 B - (502) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) L& E AT

(Kt 5£34) (12,000) - -
At 30 June 2019 R2019F 6 H30H - 5,651 43,589

154 Emperor Culture Group Limited REN{LEZEEERAQT
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED /b mEEERERMET (2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEZHSRHALE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HAAGERERERCEEZRS
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: M REEF T

Within operating activities KEEHNA
Within financing activities BEEEBNA
36. COMMITMENTS 36. EIE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments (@) RBEHR REEBHREUATER
at the end of the reporting period: AE

Contracted, but not provided DUT&EBEEITHNMER
for: B4
Property, plant and equipment M WEREE 39,884 175,616

(b) Operating lease commitments as at (b) R2019F6H30AZREHE
30 June 2019 A IE
The Group leased certain of its office properties AEERBELKEHERHFHERAES
and cinema premises under operating lease THAEMERBIME - WEM
arrangements. Leases for properties were EZT2HBN F2E155F -

negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 15 years.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total future 201996300 A& B ] HH
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable KEMETRRKEBEENKEZ
operating leases falling due as follows: B RMT
Within 1 year 1F R 74,496
In the second to fifth year, inclusive Fo2RESF (BIEEEMTE) 654,466
After 5 years 5% 1% 1,147,345
1,876,307

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX/LEZEBEERLF
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36. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments as at
30 June 2019 (continued)

The operating leases of cinema properties also
called for contingent rentals, which would be based
on a certain percentage of revenue of the operations
being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the respective tenancy
agreements. As the future revenue of these cinemas
could not be reliably determined at the end of each
of the financial years, the relevant contingent rentals
have not been included in the operating lease
commitment disclosure above. Certain of the lease
arrangements contain renewal options.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties referred herein or elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements include (1) entities
beneficially owned/controlled by entity/entities owned by
relevant private discretionary trust(s) of which Dr. Albert
Yeung is the founder, whilst Mr. Yeung Ching Loong,
Alexander, a director of the Company, is one of the
eligible beneficiaries; (2) an entity beneficially owned
by a director of the Company; (3) a deemed substantial
shareholder; and (4) a family member of a deemed
substantial shareholder and a director of the Company.

() In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

Consultancy fee BRE

Purchases of furniture i B R M

Lease expenses HERXZ

Rental expenses He® A

Event investment cost FEBEBEBREKAK
Financial advisory fee MG EREE
Reimbursements of ERNITHRX

administrative expenses
Interest on other borrowing
Sales of goods
Company secretarial fee

HiEEZHNE
& m
NAMEE

36. EIE(E

(b) R20195F6R30R 2 EEHE
iR (E)
BB ¥ 2 4 470 6 h ISk AR
$ W ARIE S BT AT ET 1R
ARG R EEBRBRAZ
ETFED LRI - R %5 B
& B R 2 A TR AT S
T HAMRAREREA LR
BrOEHERER - STHER
HaaBE0REE-

3. BEALRS

RiItBIZEHFEAM BRI LM TR
LReBBBALRE)HBBELABGE
AGELREBZA MARA—RE
Z BBREEERAERITBAZ)E
BERERMESHER 1EHZER: (2
MARR —REFTERHEA—EER:
B~ BHERA/ETERER: R4 RNAF K
BRIBRRE - REFZ-BRENX

B o

(Q) B aMEHRE i Frstm
X5 RHEREHIN  AEBMRAK
FERBEATAUTRS:

4,732
14,897
769
480
9,163

965
200

The underlying related party transactions as set out
in notes (i) and (ii) below also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 “F #f
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
() (continued)

(b)

(©)

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The purchases of furniture from and consultancy fee
charged by a related company were on terms as
agreed by the relevant party as set out in respective
agreements.

During the prior year, rental expenses incurred in
connection with the Lease Arrangements (as defined
in note 23) amounted to HK$14,897,000. During
the current year, lease expenses in connection with
the Lease Arrangements comprised of depreciation
charge of ROU Assets and interest on lease liabilities
amounting to HK$13,953,000 and HK$5,433,000,
respectively (2019: Nil). During the current year, lease
payments of HK$11,235,000 were paid to the related
parties under Lease Arrangements.

The fees and cost charged by related parties were on
terms as agreed by the relevant parties as set out in
respective agreements.

The amounts charged by related parties were with
reference to the costs incurred by them.

Being interest on an other borrowing from a family
member of a deemed substantial shareholder and a
director of the Company. Details of the terms thereof
are disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The sales of goods to related parties were on terms
as agreed by the relevant related parties.

The fee charged by the related company which is
ultimately controlled by a director was on terms as
agreed by the relevant parties.

The amounts due to the related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to non-controlling
unsecured,

interests is
interest-free and not repayable within

one year from the end of the reporting period (2019:
repayable on demand).

Emperor Culture Group Limited

3. BEAXTR B (&

(a) &)
B & -
(i) BE—MEEREEERM R
BB TIREEREAMEAREA
THE ZIERETT o
(i) REFE BEEEZHEGEE

RMaFe3) Bl E A A
14,897,000 7L - RAFE » 81
ERhEH2HERYREFERAE
EEZWERILEEEENED
Al /13,953,000 7T &%5,433,000
AL (20194  48) - RAFE » A
METHET 2 AEALIAFRAE
2 11,235,000 7T ©

iy FBEALFIMEZEBRRKAT)E

54 45 B 1 FF 80 4E B A 1 5 2 1

(iv) BEALFRUEBRZERI2EZSE
ANTEERRA -

V) RAERFBEB/IERRR—FE
B2 NREXREEBSZEMEES
ZHE - BRGRHBERERES
M5 WA M RE27 o

(vij HETHEALWERIERER
BEANLTWE Z &K -

H—REEREENZBEERRR
Wz ERTSERHEBALHEZ
AR -

(b) FEfiBREARRAREER - ©8
B % B R AR

M EANBAREMRES —F

54

(C) ENFEREEFREREET &
&
A BIRBREIE)

8 & (20194 :

REXLEXEEERATF
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEAXTXRF(E)
(continued)
(d) Operating lease commitments d) REHERE
As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total future 20196 H30H SERERE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable & BEBL S AT B @ B2 KK &
operating leases under the Lease Arrangements falling BEHEENKBB2IHABROT

due as follows:

Within 1 year 15K 14,032
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FoEESF (BREEEME) 46,418
After 5 years 5% 1% 15,855
76,305
() Compensation of key management e) XEEFEEBEABEZHM
personnel of the Group

Fees e N 1661
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included BEEFHHFBIARNGETIEREW
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. 559 o
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. R RlE8lo 22/ T A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZERMNeMIANBERRZETEN

financial instruments at the end of the reporting period T~

are as follows:

Financial assets EREE

30 June 2020 202046 H30H

Investments in film productions BEYRIEREA

Investments in listed equity ETRAFESFEE
securities

Trade receivables B 5 YR

Financial assets included in FIATENR - &
prepayments, deposits and N E A R 2
other receivables TREE

Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY

* Mandatorily designated as such * 58 1 20 1tk 45 TE
158 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERA T
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. iz Rl&lo €I A(#Z)
(continued)

Financial liabilities tReE

30 June 2020 2020%6H30H
Trade payables B P RN R 4,847
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAEMENRKESERZ
and accruals EHAE 43,461
Amounts due to related companies FETREE AR FNIAE 3,709
Amount due to non-controlling interests JIE A< JE 452 IR #E 25 FRTB 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERRITREMER 148,313
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,154,213
1,398,132
Financial assets TRMEE

30 June 2019 201946 H30H
Investments in film productions BEYRERE 164,969 - 164,969
Investments in listed equity FTRAFEHZE
securities 5,814 - 5,814
Trade receivables Z 5 WK - 4,761 4,761
Financial assets included in AR Ee
prepayments, deposits and N E b B K 2
other receivables EREE - 57,982 57,982
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBAEZFEY - 166,465 166,465
170,783 229,208 399,991
- Mandatorily designated as such - 58 i 40 Ut 5 E
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEZEEERAT 159
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. i Rl&l o€ I AE(#Z)
(continued)

Financial liabilities

TEAE

30 June 2019 201946 A30H
Trade payables B P RN R 8,678
Financial liabilities included in other payables FAEMENRRESERZ
and accruals ERAE 31,684
Amounts due to related companies e REE A E R IE 5,651
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A< JE 42 AR 4 25 FRTB 43,589
89,602

. EMITAZARBERRR

i

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

BEER
rEESRTAE(RAMESEIBEAR
BEREZEMITAERIN ZEEBERAS
BEWET:

Tmi{

>

as follows:

Investments in film productions & & & {EKR & 164,969 164,969
Investments in listed equity EHRAE S
securities K& 5,814 5,814

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEEX{CEEEEERAT
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. eI TEHZ2AABERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, the current
portion of financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables,
the current portion of financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
companies and non-controlling interests, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities reasonably
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities/repayable on demand of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the non-current portion of financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amount due to non-controlling interests,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities had been calculated and assessed mainly by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities, as appropriate. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own
non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities as at 30 June 2020 and
2019 were assessed to be insignificant.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses the
fair value measurement of financial instruments and analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included in the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

BER(E

ERECELFGE XSHREe RS
HFEY  BHRYSK  sFARBE D HTE
MR e hEBRERERZERBEE -
BB St AR B #B 0 /Y E b fE
FEEFAEAZERAE BNBEER
Bl M IR R S ARIR - BT RIRTT R EAD
EEALBEERB 2 ARNEEBNRERKS
ZEEEARENEE  TERARZFT
AYBEMME ARERKERRLE
EXFETE -

FERBE DA - e N H AR
R eBMEE BN IFERES TR -
ARERTEEMEENRBEEREZA
REEDNEIZBEBRBAEBOUER - F
ERBESKTIHANIAWMER) Z
AR RPFBRAHRKRE REF
BN EHE o B E B R20204F M 20194
6A30RBA BIRITREMEBEEANREE
BENAIFTBEORBRMEHN R RE
BEHDHFE/LTEK -

REREHUR  AEEFFHERITAR
REEFER MR TAEEEZHY
RAERETERBARE BEER
B4t % AT 1A -

TREERABZAANBEEIARNE
BT 2EZARRZSCREIEFR D
ERINFIRB 2 EBAR - ERAT
FEMBRFAEAEE:

Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{LEZXEBEERL T 161
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. et THZ2AABERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

For the investments in film productions which were under
production during the prior year, their fair values as at
30 June 2019 (2020: Nil) were estimated with reference
to the production budget of the underlying films under
production and their status. For investments in film
productions which were released for theatrical release in
their primary markets, their fair values as at 30 June 2020
and 2019 were estimated with reference to the remaining
net proceeds receivable from the exploitation of the films.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

BEHK(E)
REFEERRERBZEFYRIERE
imE - M201946A30H (20204 : &)~
AAREBEBEDZEZHBREFET 2 &E
EERERRETHF HREREEM
SRR cEFREREMS R
2020 M 20196 A30H 2 AN BE T2
EEYHEMBZRKRF T BFHAE
ITIHET ©

FARAREZAARBEIERT SR

PAT /320204 } 201956 A30H 8 T A
BEMAEATABERG ARBERNE

EHREDMZIHE

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 30 June 2020 and
2019:

Discount rates 6.50%
(2019: 5.07% to

Investments Income
in film approach, AL IR &

5% (2019: 5%)
increase/decrease in

productions discounted 20.21%) discount rate would
BERYRERE cash flow 6.50% result in decrease/
method (20194 : 5.07% = increase in fair value
WA R 20.21%) by HK$10,000 (2019:
AR & HK$52,000)
meE Ik 5% (20194 : 5%) Bh 1
KIENW A5 B
BMARBERD G
Hn10,0007% 7t (2019
F 1 52,0008 1)
162 Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{tEXEBEERA T
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. €RITAZAABERA R

i

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEBZEHRE)

Fair value hierarchy AAEBEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRITNAEE R ITARAABETE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: ZER:

Assets measured at fair value: RAREBETEZEE:

30 June 2020 20206 H30H
Investments in film B BERE

productions
Investments in listed ETRABHIRE
equity securities

30 June 2019 201946 A30H
Investments in film BEYRERE
productions - - 164,969 164,969
Investments in listed ETIRABLHERE
equity securities 5,814 - - 5,814
5,814 - 164,969 170,783
Emperor Culture Group Limited HEX{CEZEEERAT 163
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Year ended 30 June 2020 &, £2020F6H30H It F[Z
39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. et THZ2AABERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

3 during the year are as follows:

EERGE

ARBESRE)
BROAAMEHEZEE: (8)
AFEEMBARAEN BEHMT

Financial assets at FVPL BERAABEFABRZZ
SRMEE

Investments in film productions: ERRERE:
At the beginning of the year RE A 164,969 181,589
Total gains/(losses) recognised in REZERZ W

profit or loss (E518) 1B &8 392 (7,982)
Settlements we (159,139) (8,503)
Transfer to other receivables B S H MR = (135)
At the end of the year RER 6,222 164,969

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 30 June 2020 and 2019.

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease
liabilities, amounts due to related companies, amount
due to non-controlling interests, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as investments in film productions, investments in
listed equity securities, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, which mainly arise directly from
its operations.

40.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and equity price risk. Management reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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7N £ [E A 2020 4F K 20194E 6 A 30 A ] 4 7
EAMRAARBHETEZZRAEE -

RAFEE  FIREE2RZ2BELELR
BENEEE eMEERETRAEEN
BEAREBEEEANEHE3R(2019
FE)

BHREREZEEEREE

AEBZIZERMIABREFERITR
HibfgE  HERE BHBEEIAR
B RENFERERRANLRRE R
THFEY  HFEMTAZEIEENIA
AEBEXGEERBRES - AKEHESE
ZHEMBEMEENAE  MEFHIEF
BRE  LHRABHFKRE  EHEYK
AAEMNR R RHEMERRZ 2/
BE  EIRNFARGAEAM B R
MEFERzzMABE HEBEEXK

ARESRIAZEE Y TBARATE
B EEER - RBADERERE
A ERERRIEERZSAR
ZHE - EHARBGNT -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates. The Group manages this risk by monitoring
regularly the movements in interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax
(through the impact on floating rate interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings).

4. T HEEREEZRERBE(E)

A = 2 b
AEEEEEEEAKEIR T BN X
B2 BRITEEMIEERMR ZM 5 H
XEHZER - AEBEBERRERN
XEBHEREZER

TRETEMEHEBEERFITEZIF
AT NEEBRRABRCEBYFER
TREMBEZZE)BMEAEHR
EENBIHEE -

30 June 2020 20204 6H30H
HK$ borrowings B ITE R
Credit risk

The Group trades on credit mainly with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 30 June. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.

FERR
AEMEIBHAARREBRFIESS
EITEERS o Ioh - R E RS ER

BRI

B KB By & 5 K B BR
TRENENAKEEERRZEEE
ZhmEaEERR TEUNBAHENR
AE(RIEFTREBSZKNAXBAMA
BB EMER) R N6HA30E F K AT
BofE- -MENeREAEREEZRE
#wE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. K EREEBERBKEK(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERK(E
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BAEBREREERE)

30 June 2020 2020 6A30H

Trade receivables* 2 5

Financial assets included FAENAR - EZE Rk
in prepayments, deposits HinER SR 2 &/

and other receivables BE
- Normal** - E8E*
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLZEY
- Not yet past due - MK 18 AR
30 June 2019 20196 A30H
Trade receivables* 2 5 EW - - - 5142 5,142

Financial assets included FABEAR EeR
in prepayments, deposits HinfEl Rz &8

and other receivables BE
- Normal** - EE* 57,982 - - - 57,982
Cash and cash equivalents H®&MBEESEY
- Not yet past due — A & 8 A 166,465 - - - 166,465
224,447 - - 5142 229,589
- For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified * REEHESEBAERESRERE
approach for impairment, further detailed information is E—FHABREEMBRERM T2 E -

disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

> The credit quality of the financial assets included in > FHABRAMR ReRHMEKRRZEmME

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered EZEEEEEAOBRERAIES]
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is EffEEBEReREEBVIBBRIAR
no information indicating that the financial assets had a ZERBEZEEM -

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. IR RBREEEERBK(£Z)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk RBESRAR
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate funds to AEBEEERBARTZESURMEHERE
meet commitments associated with its financial liabilities. TRIBERM o AE BEHEZERAS
Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by EemafRemEE 23 HBELRE
management on an on-going basis, considering the EEBZEARERE REBELEE
maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities and financial EEYERAEEBRERE °

assets, and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at AEBERBEHRceBmBEERE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ARBBRRZEBABREOT :

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

30 June 2020 2020%6H30H
Trade payables Y ANEN 4,847
Financial liabilities included in  &H A E fth &+ 5 &
other payables and accruals EEtERZ 2
=0 43,461
Amounts due to related FEAS B8 iE AR FRIB
companies 3,709
Amount due to non-controlling  J& 1 I 28 IS # 25
interests HIA 43,589 43,589
Interest-bearing bank and other 8 8E 17 & H
borrowings BE 2,000 154,226 - 156,226
Lease liabilities HEAR 103,524 549,574 881,185 1,534,283
157,541 747,389 881,185 1,786,115
30 June 2019 2019 6 H30H
Trade payables =) ANE N 8,678 - - 8,678

Financial liabilities included in  &H A H &+ 3 &
other payables and accruals EErERZ 2/

a8E 31,684 - - 31,684
Amounts due to related e B E R R IA
companies 5,651 - - 5,651
Amount due to non-controlling  J&f 3E 4% A% # 25
interests RIE 43,589 - - 43,589
89,602 - - 89,602
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B EBEEEERBEX(E)

168

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the above interest-bearing bank
borrowing with a carrying amount of HK$2,000,000
contains a repayment on demand clause giving the
relevant bank the unconditional right to call in the
borrowing at any time and, therefore, for the purpose of
the above maturity profile, the total amount was classified
as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors of the
Company do not believe that the borrowing will be called
in its entirety at any time before its maturity and they
consider that the borrowing will be repaid in accordance
with the maturity date as set out in the banking facility
letter and bank correspondences. This evaluation was
made after considering: the consolidated financial
position of the Group at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements; the lack of events
of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the bank borrowing which
contains a repayment on demand clause, the maturity
profile of the bank borrowing as at 30 June 2020, based
on the contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring
the effect of any repayment on demand clause,
follows:

is as

RBESRK(E)

720206 H30H Bk M & A2,000,000
/%EZLLqu%fEfﬂa?k/;ﬁﬁxiE
BER BTHBRTEEKEZENR
Eﬂhﬂ%@i&%?ﬁ( Ilit o I J,ﬁ

ERME  BEEEAMREN]-

BEBLABGHRAE  ARAEEL T
B % 5 R 0 B B A AE ] B ] B 2
KEE  URRERBREFERITEE K
HRIRITHEMBNZHAEE - 2R
AR EEE| TS E S A AT - AR E
REFa M BHmER/ER RN G S M BN
N AATFEROEN  URAEBECEE
BIRFB AR EE K -

BIE B S & BB UK KM R 17 8 3K
E EZ%fETT{ﬁi"EA2020¢6ﬂ 30H /|
,Hﬁﬁkﬂzé(ﬁﬁé/\%ﬁfkﬁﬁiﬁbwﬁu&ﬁﬁ
FARERERERNFZE)FHIWOT

At 30 June 2020 7202046 HA30H
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual listed equity investments included in financial
assets at FVPL as at 30 June 2020 (as further detailed
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements). The
Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s loss for the year and other
components of equity in response to the reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market prices,
to which the Group had significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period. In response to the reasonably
possible change in the market prices of the listed
securities, if the equity price had been 5% higher or
lower, the Group’s loss for the year would decrease or
increase by HK$45,000 (2019: HK$291,000).

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio,
which is calculated by dividing the total borrowings
(including amount due to non-controlling interests and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) by net assets
attributable to the owners of the parent. As at 30 June
2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was 65.3% (2019: 7.0%).

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended
30 June 2020 and 2019.

0. U KEMEEEERMKEK(E)

% (B & B
KERRARAZBLFNAABERARKIE
KERERESEEZ S MRS HRR
7R2020F6H30H + AEERESAZ AR
BETABRZEHEENER LM
KEE (RERE B RERMFE19E — P 7F
MOmEEHRERR - REE/ EWARA
WERBBBZIMET  WRHEER
ERHmmEMNE -

BBRE DN
UNTH#HRESMBARANEERREHR
EAEXEBERER ZEBREME LR
ZEBEEYN AEEFEEBRER
HMBARBLHRZBMOES - L L™
BHEZMEHRAEZAEEBE - MR
B LA THE%  AEBEFEEEGR
A 5t 8 1145,000/%8 7T (20194F : 291,000
) °

EXER
AEENETEEAEERERREREAE
EREKENENRERRRENERL
KPS FHEEHZEL & ANERRE
1A o

AEBUEEABLLR(BIABEE (B
FEMIEER R RE R ERITREM
BE)BRUASARBEEARGEEFE)E
WHEBEN - A2020F6A30H * REEH
BEBELLEA65.3% (20194 : 7.0%) °

AEEEREERNGEBLRELENR
BYPRBEEENRREEHMAFE -
RTHEBIAERERNGER A5EAH
BEARRKMORE SR MERREE
BT I o B E 20204 M 20194
6A30RIEFE EXNEERF  BENK
BFIAEZE -
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. & 7] 8 % AR i &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the ERAARRAIRNMERRzZHBMRRAEKZ
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BERENNT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIEE 291,720 532,436
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR e kEAM

receivables JE W 3K 284 284
Financial assets at FVPL BEARBEFAEREZ

TREE 908 1,602

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 1,657 90,821
Total current assets RBEEHE 2,849 92,707
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade payables, other payables and BIEMN Bty

accruals ERF Kk ERER 828 1,242
Amount due to a related company FEf B E R R RIE 68 383
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 896 1,625
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,953 91,082
Net assets EEFE 293,673 623,518
EQUITY fE =
Issued capital EEITIRA 32,133 32,133
Reserves (note) & (h ) 261,540 591,385
Total equity EEEEE 293,673 623,518
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. XA TR BE R R K (Z

42.

43.

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

B EE

ARBFEBZBENT :

At 1 July 2018 H2018%7A1H 912,843 50 58,658 (250,978) 720,573
Loss for the year and FEBBRFE

total comprehensive T HEEBE

loss for the year - - - (129,188) (129,188)
At 30 June 2019 and #K2019%6H30H

1 July 2019 & 2019F7H1H 912,843 58,658 (380,166) 591,385
Loss for the year and FEEBERFE

total comprehensive 2HEBEBHE

loss for the year = (329,845) (329,845)
At 30 June 2020 20206 H30H 912,843 58,658 (710,011) 261,540

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified/re-
grouped to confirm with the current year’'s presentation.

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on
1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, the comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements were not restated and
continued to be reported under the requirements of the
previous standard, HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
September 2020.

Emperor Culture Group Limited

42.

43.

E B & 58
ETURSHRBEN IR BHHA
WHAKFEZEFHA

WA M mARMN 22 - A
B R2019F7H1BE AKETEBHER
MBS HREERFE165 - RIEZ A
R AMBRRACEBRSERALE
B - I 4B AR R S AT E R B B g R R
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEBEESE

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years as extracted from
the published audited consolidated financial statements:

RESULTS

TEERAEEBETEYRELE Y £ &
EREH DEREDHE EEREANE
-

ES

REVENUE 'ON PIFPIES 145,753 91,202 44,925 24,251
LOSS BEFORE TAX MRBLATE B (ELEPLPl  (134,285)  (158,355) (69,253)  (48,680)
Income tax credit Fr {5 f 1 & 976 - 242 175 -
Loss for the year from SEREEBZ

continuing operations FEBE (klkIPPIG) (134,285)  (158,113)  (69,078)  (48,680)
Loss for the year from ERIEREEE 2

discontinued operation* FEEE - - - (28,747)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEFR ElkiePl) (134,285)  (158,113)  (69,078)  (77,427)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: LTFATEEEIS:

Owners of the parent NEIEZ 2PN EUPIERNE (126,437)  (153,797)  (62,327)  (106,015)

Non-controlling interests FEE R (11,045) (7,848) (4,316) (6,751) 28,588

kLkiePlg) (134,285)  (158,113)  (69,078)  (77,427)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE

Total assets BEE WALRIYS 700,273 902,608 1,053,942 827,832
Total liabilities BEfE GBIl (101,144)  (161,468)  (173,048)  (76,543)
Net assets EEFHE Plyikd 599,129 741140 880,894 751,289
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: U TALTHE/ERER:
Owners of the parent RNAVEAR A PLEIGE| 623,518 752,706 904179 776,177
Non-controlling interests FEVE R B = gk (24,389) (11,566)  (23,285)  (24,888)
ALy 599,129 741140 880,894 751,289
. The discontinued operation represented the post production service — * BRI EXEBIEAREEE Z20165F6A30H 1L

segment which was disposed of by the Group during the year
ended 30 June 2016.

In the current year, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16 (see
note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements for a summary
of the corresponding financial impact). Accordingly, certain
comparative information for the years ended 30 June 2016,
2017, 2018 and 2019 may not be comparable to the year
ended 30 June 2020 as such comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 17. Accounting policies applicable after
the adoption of HKFRS 16 are disclosed in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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